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BHARTIYA INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
Registered Office: 56/7, Nallambakkam Village, (Via Vandalur), Chennai, Tamil Nadu – 600048

CIN – L74899TN1987PLC111744 Tel: +91 9551050418-21

Email: shares@bhartiya.com Website: www.bhartiya.com

NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the 38th Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Members of Bhartiya International Limited will 
be held on Monday, 29th September, 2025 at 11.00 A.M. IST through Video Conferencing (‘VC’)/Other Audio-Visual 
Means (‘OAVM’) facility, to transact the following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESSES:

ITEM NO. 1 ADOPTION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To receive, consider and adopt:

(a)	 the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2025, together with 
the Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon; and

(b)	 the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2025, together 
with the Report of the Auditors thereon.

ITEM NO. 2 APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTOR

To appoint a director in the place of Mr. Nikhil Aggarwal (DIN: 01891082), who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers 
himself for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESSES:

ITEM NO. 3 APPOINTMENT OF M/S. RSM & CO., COMPANY SECRETARIES (FRN: P1997DE017000) AS 
SECRETARIAL AUDITORS OF THE COMPANY.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 24A of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 and applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 & rules made thereunder (including any statutory 
modification(s) or reenactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force) and on the recommendation of the Audit Committee and 
Board of Directors of the Company, the approval of the Members be and is hereby accorded for the appointment of M/s. 
RSM & Co., Company Secretaries (FRN: P1997DE017000) as Secretarial Auditors of the Company for a term of five (5) 
consecutive Financial Years (FY) commencing from FY 2025-26 to FY 2029-30. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT approval of Members be and is hereby accorded for payment of Secretarial Audit Fee of Rs. 
4.50 Lakh plus applicable taxes and reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses for Financial Year 2025-26 and the Board of 
Directors (including any Committee thereof) be and is hereby authorised to fix and pay the Secretarial Audit Fee and other 
certifications fees as may be deemed fit for the remaining tenure.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors (including any Committee thereof) and/or the Company Secretary of the 
Company be and are hereby severally authorized to do all such acts, deeds and things and to settle all questions or difficulties 
that may arise in this regard and to execute any documents, papers, etc. as may be necessary or desirable in connection with 
or incidental to give effect to this resolution.”

ITEM NO. 4 TO APPROVE THE LIMIT OF REMUNERATION PAYABLE TO RELATED PARTY’S APPOINTMENT TO 
ANY OFFICE OR PLACE OF PROFIT.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution, as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 188(1)(f) and all other applicable provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with the Rules made thereunder (including any statutory modifications(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the 
time being in force), ratification and approval of the Company be and is hereby accorded for payment of professional fees 
exceeding of Rs. 2,50,000/- per month with effect from 1st July, 2025 till 31st March, 2026 to Mr. Robert Burton Moore Jr., 
(DIN 08108097), Director of the Company, who has been appointed as Consultant for Sales advisory and Marketing of the 
Company’s business.
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the consent of the members be and is hereby accorded to the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee/Board of Directors of the Company, to finalise and decide the change in designation/revisions in the remuneration 
payable to Mr. Robert Burton Moore Jr. from time to time in accordance with the Company’s policy on performance measurement 
and such other applicable/relevant policies and to perform and execute all such acts, deeds, matters and things (including 
delegating such authority), as may be deemed necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution and for the 
matters connected herewith or incidental hereto.”

ITEM NO. 5 TO APPROVE THE LIMIT OF REMUNERATION PAYABLE TO MR. ROBERT BURTON MOORE JR. 
(DIN-08108097) OVER AND ABOVE OTHER NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution, as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provision of Regulation 17(6)(ca) and other applicable provisions of the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended, approval be and 
is hereby accorded for payment of remuneration to Mr. Robert Burton Moore Jr. (DIN 08108097), Non-Executive Director 
of the Company, details whereof are set out in the Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, being in 
excess of fifty percent of the total annual remuneration payable to all Non-Executive Directors.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors (which term shall, unless repugnant to the context or meaning thereof, be 
deemed to include a duly authorised ‘Committee’ thereof) and the Company Secretary, be and are hereby severally authorised 
to do and perform all such acts, deeds, matters or things as may be considered necessary, appropriate, expedient or desirable 
to give effect to above resolution.”

ITEM NO. 6 – APPROVAL OF REMUNERATION OF MR. MANOJ KHATTAR (DIN: 00694981), WHOLE-TIME 
DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY, FOR THE PERIOD W.E.F. 13TH AUGUST, 2026 TO 12TH AUGUST, 2028.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT, in accordance with the provisions of Sections 188, 196, 197, 198 and other applicable provisions, 
if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), read with the provisions of Schedule V of the Act and the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and applicable provisions of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, (including any statutory modifications or re-enactments thereof 
for the time being in force), and upon the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and as approved 
by the Audit Committee and in accordance with the Nomination and Remuneration Policy and the Articles of Association of 
the Company, the approval of the shareholders of the Company, be and is hereby accorded to approve the remuneration 
of Mr. Manoj Khattar (DIN: 00694981), Whole-Time Director of the Company, for remaining period of his term, from 13th 
August, 2026 to 12th August, 2028, as detailed in Explanatory Statement, with liberty to the Board of Directors (hereinafter 
referred to as “the Board” which term shall be deemed to include the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board) 
to alter and vary the terms and conditions of the said appointment and / or remuneration as it may deem fit and as may be 
acceptable to Mr. Manoj Khattar.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the other terms and conditions of the appointment shall remain unchanged.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors and the Company Secretary of the Company be and are hereby 
authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be deemed necessary or desirable to give effect to the above 
resolution.”

By Order of the Board

For Bhartiya International Limited

Yogesh Kumar Gautam

Place: Gurugram 									        Company Secretary

Date: 13th August, 2025								         (Mem. No. A31119)
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Notes:

1.	 Statement pursuant to Section 102 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”), in respect of businesses to be transacted at 
the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”), as set out under Item No(s). 3 to 6 above and the relevant details of the Directors 
as mentioned under Item No(s). 3 to 6 above as required by Regulation 36(3) of the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”) and as required under 
Secretarial Standards – 2 on General Meetings issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, is annexed 
thereto.

2.	 The Board of Directors have considered and decided to include Item No(s). 3 to 6 given above as Special Businesses in 
the forthcoming AGM, as they are unavoidable in nature.

3.	 In compliance with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide its Circular No. 09/2023 dated September 25, 2023 
read with and General Circular No. 09/2024 dated September 19, 2024 and SEBI Circular Nos. SEBI/HO/CFD/CFD-
PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/167 dated October 07, 2023 and SEBI/HO/CFD/CFD-PoD-2/P/CIR/2024/133 dated October 
3, 2024, the Notice of 38th AGM along with the Annual Report for Financial Year 2024-25, is being sent through 
electronic mode, only to those Members whose e-mail addresses are registered with the Company, Depositories or 
Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (“RTA”) as on Friday, August 29, 2025. A letter containing the weblink, along 
with the exact path to access the complete details of the Annual Report, is being sent to Members 
who have not registered their e-mail address with the Company’s RTA or Depositories. The venue of 
the AGM shall be deemed to be the registered office of the Company. The procedure for participating in the meeting 
through VC/OAVM is explained below.

4.	 As the AGM is being conducted through VC/OAVM, where physical attendance of the Members is dispensed with, the 
facility of appointment of proxies by the Members is not available. Consequently, the Proxy Form and the Route Map are 
not annexed to this Notice.

5.	 Authorized representatives of the corporate members intending to participate in the AGM pursuant to Section 113 of Act, 
are requested to send to the Company, a certified copy (in PDF/JPG format) of the relevant Board Resolution/Authority 
letter, etc. authorizing them to attend the AGM, by e-mail to shares@bhartiya.com.

6.	 Members may note that the Notice and Annual Report 2024-25 is also available on the Company’s website at www.
bhartiya.com, websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited at www.
bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com respectively and on the website of National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) 
at www.evoting.nsdl.com.

7.	 Members seeking any information with regard to any matter to be placed at the AGM, are requested to write to the 
Company at shares@bhartiya.com.

Procedure for joining the 38th AGM through VC/ OAVM

8.	 NSDL will be providing facility for voting through remote e-Voting, for participation in the 38th AGM through VC/ OAVM 
and e-Voting during the 38th AGM.

9.	 Members may note that the VC/OAVM facility, allows participation of at least 1,000 Members on a first-come first-served 
basis.

10.	 Members will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM through the NSDL e-Voting system. 
Members may access the same by following the steps mentioned “Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system”. After 
successful login, you can see link of “VC/OAVM link” placed under “Join Meeting” menu against Company name. 
You are requested to click on VC/OAVM link placed under Join General Meeting menu. The link for VC/OAVM will be 
available in Shareholder/Member login where the EVEN (135590) of Company will be displayed. Members who do 
not have the User ID and Password for e-Voting or have forgotten the User ID and Password may retrieve the same by 
following the remote e-Voting instructions mentioned below in the Notice.

11.	 Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience. Further Members will be required 
to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance during the meeting. Please note that 
Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience 
Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN 
Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

mailto:shares@bhartiya.com
http://www.bhartiya.com/
http://www.bhartiya.com/
http://www.bseindia.com/
http://www.bseindia.com/
http://www.nseindia.com/
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
mailto:shares@bhartiya.com
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12.	 Facility of joining the AGM through VC/OAVM shall open 30 minutes before the time scheduled for the AGM and will 
be available for Members on first-come first-served basis.

13.	 Members who need assistance before and during the AGM, can contact Mr. Amit Vishal, Assistant Vice President, NSDL, 
or Ms. Pallavi Mhatre, Senior Manager, NSDL, at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call on toll free nos.: (022) 4886 7000 or (022) 
2499 7000.

14.	 Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under 
Section 103 of the Act.

Procedure to raise questions/seek clarifications with respect to Annual Report at the ensuing 38th AGM:

15.	 Members are encouraged to express their views/send their queries in advance mentioning their name, demat account 
number/folio number, email id, mobile number at shares@bhartiya.com. Questions/ queries received by the Company 
till 5.00 p.m. on Thursday, 25th September, 2025, shall only be considered and responded during the AGM.

16.	 Members who would like to express their views or ask questions during the AGM may register themselves as a speaker, 
by following the steps mentioned “Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system”. After successful login, Members will be able 
to register themselves as a speaker shareholder by clicking on the link available against the EVEN (135590) of Bhartiya 
International Limited. The Company reserves the right to restrict the number of questions and number of speakers, 
depending on the availability of time for the AGM.

17.	 The Company reserves the right to restrict the number of questions and number of speakers, depending on the availability 
of time for the AGM.

18.	Procedure for remote e-Voting and e-Voting during the AGM

a.	 All the shareholders of the Company are encouraged to attend and vote in the AGM to be held through VC/OAVM.

b.	 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Act read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and Administration) 
Rules, 2014 and Regulation 44 of the Listing Regulations, (including any statutory modification(s) and/or re-enactment(s) 
thereof for the time being in force), the Company is providing facility of remote e-Voting to its Members in respect of the 
business to be transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with NSDL for 
facilitating voting through electronic means, as the authorized agency. The facility of casting votes by a member using 
remote e-Voting system as well as e-Voting on the date of the AGM will be provided by NSDL.

c.	 The remote e-Voting period commences on Friday, 26th September, 2025 at 9:00 a.m. and will end on Sunday, 28th 
September, 2025 at 5:00 p.m. During this period, Members holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized 
form, as on Monday, 22nd September, 2025 i.e. cut-off date, may cast their vote electronically. The e-Voting module shall 
be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. Members have the option to cast their vote on any of the resolutions using the 
remote e-Voting facility either during the period commencing 26th September, 2025 to 28th September, 2025 or e-Voting 
during the AGM. Members who have voted on some of the resolutions during the said voting period are also eligible to 
vote on the remaining resolutions during the AGM.

d.	 The details of the process and manner for remote e-Voting are explained herein below:

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system

A) 	 Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities 
in demat mode

	 In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders 
holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and 
Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in 
order to access e-Voting facility.

mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
mailto:shares@bhartiya.com
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Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below:

Type of shareholders  Login Method

Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in 
demat mode with NSDL.

1.	 For OTP based login you can click on  https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/evoting/
evotinglogin.jsp. You will have to enter your 8-digit DP ID,8-digit Client Id, PAN No., 
Verification code and generate OTP. Enter the OTP received on registered email id/mobile 
number and click on login. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL 
Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting 
service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL 
for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting 
during the meeting.

2.	 Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz. https://eservices.nsdl.
com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. On the e-Services home page click 
on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ 
section , this will prompt you to enter your existing User ID and Password. After successful 
authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services under Value added services. Click 
on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting 
page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will 
be re-directed to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting 
period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

3.	 If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at https://
eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or click at https://
eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp 

4.	 Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://
www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home 
page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 
‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User 
ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and 
a Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you will be 
redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company 
name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting 
website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual 
meeting & voting during the meeting.	

5.	 Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL Speede” facility by 
scanning the QR code mentioned below for seamless voting experience.

Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in 
demat mode with CDSL

1.	 Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their existing user 
id and password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page without any further 
authentication. The users to login Easi /Easiest are requested to visit CDSL website www.
cdslindia.com and click on login icon & New System Myeasi Tab and then user your existing 
my easi username & password.

2.	 After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting option for eligible 
companies where the evoting is in progress as per the information provided by company. On 
clicking the evoting option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service 
provider for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & 
voting during the meeting. Additionally, there is also links provided to access the system of 
all e-Voting Service Providers, so that the user can visit the e-Voting service providers’ website 
directly.

3.	 If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at CDSL website 
www.cdslindia.com and click on login & New System Myeasi Tab and then click on 
registration option.

4.	 Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat Account Number 
and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available on www.cdslindia.com home page. The system 
will authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the 
Demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be able to see the e-Voting option 
where the evoting is in progress and also able to directly access the system of all e-Voting 
Service Providers.

https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/evoting/evotinglogin.jsp
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/evoting/evotinglogin.jsp
https://eservices.nsdl.com
https://eservices.nsdl.com
https://eservices.nsdl.com
https://eservices.nsdl.com
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
http://www.cdslindia.com
http://www.cdslindia.com
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Individual Shareholders 
(holding securities in 
demat mode) login 
through their depository 
participants

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your Depository 
Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. upon logging in, you will be able to 
see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository 
site after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company 
name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of 
NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting 
during the meeting.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget Password 
option available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related 
to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL.

Login Type Helpdesk details

Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in 
demat mode with NSDL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request 
at evoting@nsdl.com or call at 022 - 4886 7000

Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in 
demat mode with CDSL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request 
at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free no. 1800 21 09911

(B) 	 Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than Individual shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode.

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?

1.	 Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ 
either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.

2.	 Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/ 
Member’ section.

3.	 A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown 
on the screen.

	 Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with 
your existing IDeAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting 
and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically.

4.	 Your User ID details are given below :

a) For Members who hold shares in demat ac-
count with NSDL.

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID
For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client ID is 
12****** then your user ID is IN300***12******.

b) For Members who hold shares in demat ac-
count with CDSL.

16 Digit Beneficiary ID
For example if your Beneficiary ID is 12************** 
then your user ID is 12**************

c) For Members holding shares in Physical Form. EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered with the 
Company
For example if folio number is 001*** and EVEN is 
101456 then user ID is 101456001***

5.	 Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:

a)	 If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can use your existing password to login and cast your vote.

b)	 If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial password’ which 
was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’ 
and the system will force you to change your password.

c)	 How to retrieve your ‘initial password’?

(i)	 If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the Company, your ‘initial password’ is 
communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open 

mailto:evoting@nsdl.com
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
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the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file 
is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for 
shares held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’.

(ii)	 If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for those 
shareholders whose email ids are not registered.

6.	 If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “Initial password” or have forgotten your password:

a)	 Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat account with NSDL 
or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

b)	 Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available on www.
evoting. nsdl.com.

c)	 If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at evoting@nsdl. 
com mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your name and your registered address 
etc.

d)	 Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the e-Voting system 
of NSDL.

7.	 After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check box.

8.	 Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.

9.	 After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open.

	 Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system.

	 How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system?

1.	 After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you are holding shares 
and whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in active status.

2.	 Select “EVEN (135590)” of Company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting period and 
casting your vote during the General Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, you need to click on “VC/OAVM” link 
placed under “Join Meeting”.

3.	 Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.

4.	 Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of shares for which 
you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted.

5.	 Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.

6.	 You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the confirmation page.

7.	 Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

General Guidelines for shareholders

1.	 Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy (PDF/JPG 
Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized 
signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to contact@csrsm.com with a copy marked to 
evoting@nsdl.co.in.

	 Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also upload their Board Resolution/Power of 
Attorney/Authority Letter etc. by clicking on “Upload Board Resolution/Authority Letter” displayed under “e-Voting” 
tab in their login.

2.	 It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your 
password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in the 
correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical 
User Reset Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.

3.	 In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-voting user 
manual for Shareholders available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no.: 1800 
1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30 or send a request to (Name of NSDL Official) at evoting@nsdl.co.in.

http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
mailto:evoting@nsdl.com
mailto:evoting@nsdl.com
mailto:contact@csrsm.com
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
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4.	 Members who have cast their votes by remote e-Voting prior to the AGM may also attend/ participate in the Meeting 
through VC/OAVM but they shall not be entitled to cast their vote again.

5.	 Any person holding shares in physical form and non-individual shareholders, who acquires shares of the Company 
and becomes member of the Company after the notice is send through e-mail and holding shares as of the cut- 
off date i.e. Monday, 22nd September, 2025, may obtain the login ID and password by sending a request at  
evoting@ nsdl.co.in or to the Company at shares@bhartiya.com. However, if you are already registered with NSDL 
for remote e-Voting, then you can use your existing user ID and password for casting your vote. If you forgot your 
password, you can reset your password by using “Forgot User Details/Password” or “Physical User Reset Password” 
option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no. 1800- 1020-990 and 1800-224-430. In case 
of Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode who acquires shares of the Company and becomes a 
Member of the Company after sending of the Notice and holding shares as of the cut-off date i.e. Monday, 22nd 
September, 2025 may follow steps mentioned in the Notice of the AGM “Access to NSDL e-Voting system”.

6.	 Mr. Ravi Sharma, Partner, M/s. RSM & Co., Practicing Company Secretaries (Membership No. 4468, COP: 3666), 
has been appointed as the Scrutinizer for conducting voting process in a fair and transparent manner.

7.	 The Chairman shall, at the AGM, at the end of discussion on the resolutions on which voting is to be held, allow 
voting with the assistance of scrutinizer, by use of electronic voting for all those members who are present at the 
AGM but have not cast their votes by availing the remote e-Voting facility.

8.	 The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after the completion of the scrutiny of the e-voting (votes cast during the AGM 
and votes cast through remote e-voting), within 2 working days of conclusion of the AGM, submit a consolidated 
Scrutinizer’s report of the total votes cast in favour and against the Resolution(s), invalid votes, if any, and whether 
the Resolution(s) has/have been carried or not, to the Chairman or a person authorized by him in writing.

	 The result declared along with the Scrutinizer’s Report shall be placed on the Company’s website  
www.bhartiya.com and on the website of NSDL www.evoting.nsdl.com immediately after the result is declared. The 
Company shall simultaneously forward the results to BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Ltd., where 
the securities of the Company are listed.

	 Subject to the receipt of requisite number of votes, the Resolutions shall be deemed to be passed on the date of the 
Meeting i.e. 29th September, 2025.

Documents open for inspection:

9.	 All the documents referred to in the accompanying notice and the statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Act 
shall be available for inspection through electronic mode. Members are requested to write to the Company on 
shares@bhartiya.com for inspection of said documents; and

10.	 The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding maintained under Section 170 of 
the Act and the Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which Directors are interested maintained under Section 
189 of the Act will be available for inspection by the members during the AGM by following the steps mentioned 
at “Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system”. After successful login members will be able to view the documents for 
inspection by clicking on the link available against EVEN (135590) of the Company.

19.	Transfer of Unclaimed Dividend Amounts to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF):

a.	 Pursuant to Section 124 of the Act read with the Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, 
Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 (“IEPF Rules”) amended time to time, dividends that are unpaid or unclaimed for 
a period of 7 (seven) years from the date of their transfer are required to be transferred by the Company to the 
IEPF, administered by the Central Government. Further, according to the said IEPF Rules, shares in respect of which 
dividend has not been claimed by the shareholders for 7 (seven) consecutive years or more shall also be transferred 
to the demat account of the IEPF Authority.

b.	 During the financial year 2024-25, the Company has transferred to IEPF, the following unclaimed dividends and 
corresponding shares thereto:

Particulars Amount in Dividend (In Rs.) No. of Shares

Final Dividend 2016-17 144537.60 5987

Total 144537.60 5987

mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
mailto:shares@bhartiya.com
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
mailto:shares@bhartiya.com
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c.	 The dividend amount and shares transferred to the IEPF can be claimed by the concerned members from the IEPF 
Authority after complying with the procedure prescribed under the IEPF Rules. The details of the unclaimed dividends 
are also available on the Company’s website at www.bhartiya.com and the said details have also been uploaded 
on the website of the IEPF Authority and the same can be accessed through the link www.iepf.gov.in.

20.	 SEBI HAS MANDATED SUBMISSION OF PAN BY EVERY PARTICIPANT IN THE SECURITIES MARKET. MEMBERS 
HOLDING SHARES IN ELECTRONIC FORM ARE, THEREFORE, REQUESTED TO SUBMIT THEIR PAN DETAILS TO THEIR 
DEPOSITORY PARTICIPANTS. MEMBERS HOLDING SHARES IN PHYSICAL FORM ARE REQUESTED TO SUBMIT THEIR 
PAN DETAILS TO THE COMPANY’S RTA.

21.	 The Company has made special arrangements with the RTA and NSDL for registration of email addresses in terms of the 
MCA Circulars for Members who wish to receive the Annual Report along with the AGM Notice electronically and to 
cast the vote electronically.

22.	 Members holding shares in single name are advised to avail the facility of nomination in respect of shares held by them 
pursuant to the provisions of Section 72 of the Act. Members holding shares in physical form desiring to avail this facility 
may send their nomination in the prescribed Form No. SH-13 duly filled into MAS Services Limited. Members holding 
shares in electronic mode may contact their respective Depository Participants to avail this facility. The Form SH-13 is 
available on the website of the Company at www.bhartiya.com.

23.	 Important Communications & Awareness Material for Shareholders:

a)	 SEBI encourages all shareholders to consider the inherent advantages of dematerialization and get their existing 
physical shareholding converted into demat mode. SEBI has also prohibited transfer of equity shares in physical 
mode. Therefore, all Members holding their shares in physical form are advised to dematerialize their shareholding 
at the earliest, by opening a demat account with any Depository Participant (DP) and submit the demat request to 
their DP.

b)	 Members may please note that SEBI vide its Circular dated 25th January, 2022, has mandated Listed Companies to 
issue securities in demat form only, while processing service requests such as issue of duplicate securities certificate; 
claim from unclaimed suspense account; renewal/exchange of securities certificate, endorsement, sub-division/ 
splitting of securities certificate, consolidation of securities certificates/folios, transmission and transposition. 
Accordingly, Members are requested to make service requests by submitting a duly filled-in and signed Form ISR-4, 
along with relevant documents, the format(s) of which is available on the Company’s website at www.bhartiya.com.

c)	 SEBI has mandated the Company/RTA to obtain copies of PAN Card, KYC Details, Bank Account Details, Nomination 
Form, etc. from all shareholders holding shares in physical form. Therefore, shareholders holding shares in physical 
form are requested to provide PAN, KYC and other details at the earliest in Form ISR-1, along with the supporting 
documents/details such as contact details including mobile number and email, self-attested copy of PAN card 
and address-proof of all holders, Nomination Form in SH-13 or ‘Declaration to Opt-out’ in Form ISR-3 and bank 
details along with original cancelled cheque and banker’s attestation of specimen signature in Form ISR-2. Detailed 
instructions and specimen formats in this regard, are available on the investor section of the website of the Company 
at www.bhartiya.com.

	 Please note that in case you are holding shares in physical form, you will be eligible to get any service request 
processed by the RTA only when your KYC details are updated. Further, w.e.f. 1st April, 2024, you will be eligible 
for dividend payments in electronic mode only when your KYC details are updated. Hence, please download, fill 
and send the requisite documents to the Company/RTA at the earliest.

d)	 SEBI vide its circular dated July 31, 2023, has introduced a common Online Dispute Resolution Portal (“ODR 
Portal”), which harnesses online method for resolution, conciliation and arbitration for disputes arising in the Indian 
Securities Market. The ODR Portal allows investors with additional mechanism to resolve their grievances, in case 
they are not satisfied with the resolution provided by the Company/RTA and/or through SCORES 2.0 Platform of 
SEBI (SEBI https://scores.sebi.gov.in). Web-link to access the said portal is https://smartodr.in. Detailed circulars in 
this regard to this facility are available on the investor section of the website of the Company at www.bhartiya.com.

http://www.bhartiya.com/
http://www.iepf.gov.in/
http://www.bhartiya.com/
http://www.bhartiya.com/
http://www.bhartiya.com/
https://smartodr.in/
http://www.bhartiya.com/
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STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 IN RESPECT OF THE SPECIAL 
BUSINESS ITEM NOS. 3 TO 6.

ITEM NO. 3

Pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 24A of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
(“the Listing Regulations”), (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), 
the Board of Directors on recommendation of the Audit Committee appointed M/s. RSM & Co., Company Secretaries as a 
Secretarial Auditors of the Company for a term of five (5) consecutive Financial Years (FY) commencing from FY 2025-26 to 
FY 2029-30 at a remuneration of Rs. 4.50 Lakh plus applicable taxes and reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses for FY 
2025-26 and recommends their appointment including remuneration as proposed at Item no. 3 for approval by the Members 
by way of an Ordinary Resolution.

M/s. RSM & Co., Company Secretaries is a firm of Company Secretaries having professional experience spanning over more 
than 25 years specializing in Secretarial Audit, Due Diligence, Assurance Audit, Corporate Compliance Management etc.

M/s. RSM & Co., Company Secretaries have provided their consent to be appointed as Secretarial Auditors of the Company 
for a term of five (5) consecutive Financial Years (FY) commencing from FY 2025-26 to FY 2029-30 and also confirmed that 
they are not disqualified to be appointed as Secretarial Auditors of the Company. They also confirmed that they have subjected 
themselves to the peer review process of the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI) and hold a valid certificate issued 
by the Peer Review Board of the ICSI.

None of the Directors or KMP’s or their relatives are concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the said resolution.

ITEM NOS. 4 & 5

The Company is desirous of utilizing the expertise of Mr. Robert Burton Moore Jr., Director for business requirements and hence 
wants to pay consultancy fees to him towards his appointment as Consultant for Marketing of our business.

As such, Mr. Robert Burton Moore Jr. will hold office or place of profit in the Company within the meaning of Section 188 of 
the Companies Act, 2013.

As per provisions of section 188 (1)(f) read with rule 3(b) of Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, 
approval of shareholders is required if the monthly remuneration of such person exceeds Rs. 2,50,000/-per month. Since the 
company is benefitted from the services of the above-mentioned Director holding office or place of profit in the Company, the 
Board has sanctioned his consultancy fees exceeding Rs. 2,50,000/- per month which is justified.

Copy of Appointment Letter setting out terms and conditions of his appointment is available for inspection by Members till the 
Annual General Meeting as per details mentioned in the Notes.

Further, in terms of the notified Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, as amended, consent of the Members by way of Special Resolution is required every year, if the 
remuneration payable to a single Non-Executive Director in that year exceeds 50% of the aggregate remuneration payable 
to all the Non-Executive Directors taken together. Your approval is therefore sought for the payment of remuneration upto USD 
135,000 (equivalent INRs.) towards Consultancy fees for Marketing of the Company’s business, to Mr. Robert Burton Moore 
Jr. for the financial year 2025-26.

Mr. Robert Burton Moore Jr. is interested in the resolutions set out at Item Nos. 4 & 5 of the Notice.

The relatives of Mr. Robert Burton Moore Jr. may be deemed to be interested in the resolutions set out at Item No. 4 & 5 of the 
Notice, to the extent of their shareholding interest, if any, in the Company.

None of the other Directors/KMP, except Mr. Robert Burton Moore Jr., are interested in the aforesaid resolution.

The Board accordingly recommends the ordinary and special resolution set forth in Item Nos. 4 & 5 for the approval of the 
members.

Brief resume of Mr. Robert Burton Moore Jr, nature of his expertise in specific functional areas, name of companies in which he 
holds directorship and memberships/chairmanships of Board Committees, shareholding and relationships amongst directors 
inter-se as stipulated under Secretarial Standards and Regulation 36 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 forms part of this Notice.
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ITEM NO. 6

Members of the Company are requested to note the Board had in its meeting held on, 11th August, 2023, appointed Mr. 
Manoj Khattar (DIN: 00694981), as Whole-time Director of the Company for a period of five years w.e.f. 13th August, 2023; 
however, remuneration was approved for three years. Such appointment and remuneration later approved by shareholders in 
their annual general meeting held on 29th September, 2023. The approval for remuneration will expire on 12th August, 2026.

The Board of Directors in its meeting held on 13th August, 2025, on recommendation/approval of Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee and Audit Committee respectively and SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015, 
has accorded to approve the remuneration of Mr. Manoj Khattar, Whole-Time Director of the Company, w.e.f. 13th August, 
2026 for his remaining tenure on the same terms and conditions as previously approved by members in their Annual General 
Meeting held on 29th September, 2023 as follow:

The material terms of appointment and remuneration as set out in his appointment letter are given below:-

S. No. Particulars Amount per annum (In Rs.)

1. Basic Salary 50,00,000

2. Personal Pay, Perquisites and Allowances 55,00,000

3. Variable Pay 20,00,000

Total 125,00,000

The scope and quantum of remuneration and perquisites specified above herein may be enhanced, enlarged, widened, altered 
or varied by the Board of Directors upto 15% per annum at any given point of time in the light of and in conformity of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and or/ the rules and regulations made thereunder and/or such guidelines as may be announced by 
Central Government from time to time. Other benefits & perquisites would remain unchanged; for part of a year remuneration 
to be paid proportionately.

Mr. Manoj Khattar has the overall responsibility for all financial matters including capital-budgeting, planning & management, 
internal controls and audit. Mr. Manoj Khattar is not debarred from holding the office of director pursuant to any SEBI order.

The terms as set out in the resolution may be treated as an abstract of the terms of appointment pursuant to Section 196, 197 
of the Companies Act, 2013.

As the remuneration exceeds the limit mentioned under Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013, shareholders’ approval is 
being sought through Special Resolution as set out in Item No. 6 of the Notice of 38th Annual General Meeting for approval 
of the remuneration of Mr. Manoj Khattar, Whole-Time Director of the Company with effect from 13th August, 2026 to 12th 
August, 2028.

The disclosures prescribed under Regulation 36 of the Listing Regulations read with the provisions of the Secretarial Standard 
on General Meetings issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (‘SS-2’) are provided in the Notice.

Except Mr. Manoj Khattar, none of the other Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives are, in 
any way, concerned or interested (financially or otherwise) in the proposed resolution(s) mentioned at item no. 6. The Board 
recommends the passing of the resolution(s) as set out at item no. 6 as Special Resolution.
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ANNEXURE – A

Pursuant to Secretarial Standard and Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the details of the Directors seeking appointment/re-appoint-
ment/ fixation of remuneration/variation of the term of remuneration at the forthcoming Annual 
General Meeting:

Name of Director Mr. Nikhil Aggarwal Mr. Robert Burton Moore Jr. Mr. Manoj Khattar

Date of Birth & Age 23/10/1975 (50 years) 18/09/1950 (75 years) 14/08/1961 (64 years)

DIN 01891082 08108097 00694981

Nationality Indian United States of America Indian

Qualifications BE- Mech. Engg., MBA BBA degree (Marketing and 
Accounts) from The University 
of Mississippi, Oxford, 
Mississippi, USA

Chartered Accountant

Experience More than 25 years More than 41 years 40 years

Date of first 
appointment on the
Board

04/10/2007 16/04/2018 13/08/2018

Expertise in functional 
areas

Experience in International
Marketing and Management

Marketing expert studied 
at University of Mississippi; 
received Taylor Medal in 1988.
Was named among the 20 
Most Powerful Tanners in 
World in Leather International 
Magazine, 2012.

Capital-budgeting, planning & 
management, internal controls and audit 
and other financial matters

Directorship	 held 
in other Companies

Ultima Italia S.R.L.
(Overseas Company)

Rocky Brands Inc. (Overseas 
Company)
Nerbio Medical Software, Inc 
(Overseas Company)

1.	 SMART INFOTECH PARK PRIVATE 
LIMITED

2.	 BHARTIYA DEVELOPERS 
CONSORTIUM PRIVATE LIMITED

3.	 CRYSTAL MERCHANT TRADING 
PRIVATE LIMITED

4.	 SPRINGDALE VENTURES PRIVATE 
LIMITED

5.	 BHARTIYA HOSPITALITY PRIVATE 
LIMITED

6.	 BHARTIYA GLOBAL MARKETING 
LIMITED

7.	 BHARTIYA SMART CITIES PRIVATE 
LIMITED

8.	 BHARTIYA INTERNATIONAL SEZ 
LIMITED

9.	 BHARTIYA INFRASTRUCTURE 
PRIVATE LIMITED

10.	TADA MEGA LEATHER CLUSTER 
PRIVATE LIMITED

11.	MILECON IT PARK 3B PRIVATE 
LIMITED

12.	BHARTIYA CITY RESIDENCES 
PRIVATE LIMITED

13.	BHARTIYA URBAN INFRASTRUCTURE 
LIMITED

14.	BHARTIYA GLOBAL VENTURES 
PRIVATE LIMITED

15.	BHARTIYA URBAN PRIVATE LIMITED
16.	J & J LEATHER ENTERPRISES LIMITED
17.	BHARTIYA FASHION RETAIL LIMITED
18.	SA HOLDINGS LIMITED (Overseas 

Company)
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Directorship held in 
Listed Entities (other 
than the Company)

NIL NIL NIL

Name of Listed 
Companies in which 
Director resigned in 
past 3 years.

NIL NIL NIL

Relationship with other 
Directors, Manager 
and other KMP of the 
Company

Mr. Nikhil Aggarwal is the 
nephew of Mr. Snehdeep 
Aggarwal

NIL NIL

Terms and conditions 
of appointment/
continuation of 
Directorship

He is proposed to be re-
appointed as Non-Executive 
Director liable to retire by 
rotation.

The terms and conditions and 
details of remuneration sought 
to be paid is given in the 
resolutions/explanatory in this 
Notice.

In accordance with provisions of Section 
Sections 188, 196, 197, 198 of the 
Companies Act, 2013

Details of last 
Remuneration
drawn (F.Y. 2024-25)

NIL Rs. 1,05,83,995/- Rs. 89,66,962/-

Details of proposed 
Remuneration

NIL as per resolution as per resolution

Name of Director Mr. Nikhil Aggarwal Mr. Robert Burton Moore Jr. Mr. Manoj Khattar

Number of Meetings 
of the Board attended 
during the F.Y. 2024-25

Board 
Meetings 
Attended

No. of Board 
Meetings held

Board Meetings 
Attended

No. of Board 
Meetings held

Board Meetings 
Attended

No. of Board 
Meetings held

5 5 5 5 5 5

Chairman / Member of 
the Committee of the 
Board of Directors of 
this Company

Chairman / 
Member

Name of the 
Committees

Chairman / 
Member

Name of the 
Committees

Chairman / 
Member

Name of the 
Committees

- - Member Management 
Committee

Committee Membership 
in other Companies

Name of the 
Committees

Chairman/ 
Member

Name of the 
Committees

Chairman/ 
Member

Name of the 
Company

Name of the 
Committees

- - Bhartiya 
International SEZ 

Limited

Audit 
Committee-
Chairman

Nomination 
and 

Remuneration 
Committee - 
Chairman

- -

Number of shares held	
in Company

20000 Equity Shares NIL 20025 Equity Shares
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BOARD’S REPORT

Your Directors’ are pleased to present the Thirty Eighth Annual Report on the business and operations of the Company together 
st March, 2025 (“year under review”).

FINANCIAL RESULTS

st March, 2025 are as 
follows:

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars Consolidated Standalone

2024-25 2024-25

Net Sales/ Income from Operations 102926.27 85656.58

Other Income 443.77 396.77 265.62

Total Income 103370.04 86053.35

9485.99 8407.49

Finance Cost 4539.01 4352.70

4946.98 4054.79

Depreciation 2575.38 1056.67

2371.60 2998.12

932.19 882.89

1562.66 2115.23

123.25 -

1562.66 2115.23

Other Comprehensive Income (33.65) (21.50)

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year 1529.01 2093.73

Paid up Equity Share Capital 1298.44 1298.44

43556.92 38295.51

12.77 0.20 17.29

Earning per Share (Diluted) Rs. 12.47 0.20 16.88

Dividend - -

PERFORMANCE REVIEW

 
 

On Standalone basis, during the year under review, the Company achieved a turnover of Rs. 85656.58 
 

SHARE CAPITAL

Dates Description No. of shares/
warrants

Total value of 
shares (INR)

Share Capital at the beginning of the year

ADDITION

Equity Shares allotted pursuant to Conversion of Warrants 775000 7750000

Share Capital at the end of the year
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th

the allottee within the prescribed period as per the terms of issue. 

PROCEEDS FROM PUBLIC ISSUES, RIGHTS ISSUES, PREFERENTIAL ISSUES ETC.

12,01,000 (Twelve Lakhs One Thousand) Fully Convertible Warrants (“Warrants”) at an issue price of Rs. 430/- 
(Rupees Four Hundred and Thirty Only) per Warrant. These Warrants are convertible into Equity Shares, amounting to 
an aggregate consideration of Rs.  51,64,30,000/- (Rupees Fifty-One Crores Sixty-Four Lakhs Thirty Thousand 
Only).

Out of total, 7,75,000 (Seven Lakhs Seventy-Five Thousand) Warrants were duly converted into Equity Shares, and 
19th March, 2025. 

utilization of funds is as follows:

S.
No.

Particulars Amount allocated 
as per Placement 

Document
(In INR Lakhs)

Amount Utilized 
as on date of this 

report
(In INR Lakhs)

Company.

2.
Equipment.

250.00 250.00

Total 5164.30 3790.45

DIVIDEND

Directors of the Company has deemed it prudent not to recommend any dividend on the Equity Shares of the Company for the 
st March, 2025.

does not fall within the prescribed threshold.

DETAILS AND PERFORMANCE OF SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

Domestic Subsidiaries

Bhartiya Global Marketing Limited
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J&J Leather Enterprises Limited

This Company is a tannery to support our leather garments and accessories business through conversion of wet blue leather 

Bhartiya International SEZ Limited

Bhartiya Fashion Retail Limited

Bhartiya Urban Infrastructure Limited

Overseas Subsidiaries 

Ultima S.A. Switzerland

CHF 10,212,386.18 and 
incurred a net loss of CHF 922,395.02

World Fashion Trade Limited, Mauritius

Ultima Italia SRL, Italy

Design Industry Limited, Hongkong

Design Industry China Limited, China

year.

New Subsidiary /Associate Company Incorporated / Dissolved during the year

No new Subsidiary or Associate Company was incorporated acquired during the year under review. Also, no subsidiary/ or 
Associate Company was dissolved during the year under review.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

st March, 2025 has been 

st March, 2025.
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Consolidated Financial Statements

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company are prepared in accordance with the relevant Indian Accounting 
Standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and forms an integral part of this Report.

EMPLOYEES STOCK OPTION PLAN

stands concluded and is no longer in force.

DIRECTORS

Retirement by rotation and subsequent re-appointment

members.

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Sl. No. Name of the person Designation

2.

Company Secretary

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

a) st March, 2025, the applicable accounting 

b) that the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates 
st March, 

c) 
with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and 

d) 

e) 

f) that the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such 
systems were adequate and operating effectively.

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD
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NOMINATION, REMUNERATION AND BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

Personnel and Senior Management of the Company. The Policy broadly lays down the guiding principles, philosophy and 

BOARD EVALUATION

of composition, and the effectiveness of meetings. Individual Directors were evaluated on parameters including attendance, 

th

The outcome of the evaluations was also reviewed and discussed in the meetings of the Nomination and Remuneration 

Committees, and individual Directors.

FAMILIARISATION PROGRAMME FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Company has in place a structured Familiarisation Programme to provide its Independent Directors with an understanding 
of the nature of the industry, the Company’s business operations, and their roles, rights, and responsibilities. This programme 

the Company’s website at 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

section of the Annual Report.

STATUTORY AUDIT

th September, 2022, the members of the Company appointed M/s. Sushil 

th

th May, 

th
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st

SECRETARIAL AUDIT

th

st

The said report is also available on the Company’s website at:www.bhartiya.com.

th May 2025 approved the appointment of 

COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

CSR Policy.

Annexure ‘B’
Report. The Company’s CSR Policy is available on its website at www.bhartiya.com.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

standards of transparency, accountability, and integrity in all its operations.
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BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY AND SUSTAINABILITY REPORTING (BRSR)

criteria prescribed under the said regulations.

ANNUAL RETURN

relations.html. 

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

website at 

The Policy intends to ensure that proper reporting, approval and disclosure processes are in place for all transactions between 
the Company and its Related Parties. All Related Party Transactions are placed before the Audit Committee for review and 
approval. Prior omnibus approval is obtained for Related Party Transactions, which are of repetitive nature and / or entered 

is not applicable.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS BY COMPANY

given in the notes to Financial Statements.

RISK MANAGEMENT

treasury management and effective use of hedge options.

VIGIL MECHANISM/WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

posted on the website of the Company (www.bhartiya.com).

ENVIRONMENT AND SAFETY

The Company is conscious of the importance of environmentally clean and safe operations. The Company’s policy requires 
conduct of operations in such a manner so as to ensure safety of all concerned, compliances environmental regulations and 
preservation of natural resources.
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Details of the number of complaints received, disposed of and pending for the year under review are as follows:

(b) Number of complaints disposed of during the year:   Nil

(c) Number of cases pending for more than ninety days:  Nil

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company has a proper and adequate system of internal controls to ensure that all assets are safeguarded and protected 
against loss from unauthorised use or disposition and that the transactions are authorised, recorded and reported correctly. 

and suggests improvements to strengthen the same. The Company has a robust Management Information System, which is an 
integral part of the control mechanism.

CREDIT RATING

IND 
BBB stable outlook th 

term rating has remained the same.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS

detailed in this Report as well as Notes to the Financial Statements of the Company.

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE BOARD OF INDIA (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) 
REGULATIONS, 2015.

COMPLIANCE OF SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS

Company and its future operations.

COST AUDIT AND MAINTANANCE OF COST RECORD
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ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND 
OUTGO.

st March, 2025 on the Conservation of Energy, Technology 
Annexure ‘C’ forming part of this report.

HUMAN RESOURCES

the customers of tomorrow.

development opportunities and cultivating leadership for change.

We are committed to building a strong leadership pipeline by fostering a culture of continuous learning, innovation, and 

leaders.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

508 employees.

part of this Report.

Rules also form part of this Report.

interested in obtaining such information may write to the Company Secretary, and the same shall be furnished upon request. 
The Annual Report, including the said information, is also available on the Company’s website.

Additionally, none of the employees hold (either by themselves or jointly with their spouse and dependent children) more than 
2% of the equity shares of the Company.

DEMAT SUSPENSE ACCOUNT FOR UNCLAIMED SHARES

There are no unclaimed shares of the Company.

PUBLIC DEPOSIT

AWARDS AND ACCOLADES

the previous three Financial Years by the Company are as given below:
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(a) 

(b) 

(c) 

(d) 

(e) 

GENERAL

Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following matters as there were no transactions 
on these matters during the year under review:

a) 

b) 
from any of its subsidiaries.

c) 
status and Company’s operations in future.

d) 

e) There has been no changes in the nature of business of the Company.

f) 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Company’s valued customers, suppliers, vendors, business associates, various government and regulatory authorities, local 

levels, whose efforts have been instrumental in driving the Company’s progress and performance during the year.

 

 For and on behalf of the Board

 

 Snehdeep Aggarwal
 Chairman

 DIN: 00928080
th August, 2025
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ANNEXURE A 
FORM NO. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31ST MARCH, 2025

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

The Members

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliances of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good 
corporate practices by BHARTIYA INTERNATIONAL LIMITED (hereinafter called the Company”). The Secretarial Audit 
was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts / statutory compliances 

the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the 

st

2. 

5. 

a) 

b) 

c) 

d) 
(Not applicable to the Company during the audit Period);

e) (Not 
applicable to the Company during the audit Period)

f) 

g) (Not applicable to the 
Company during the audit period);

h) Not applicable to the 
company during the audit period) and 

i) 
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j) 
applicable. 

6. 

designated professionals.

i) 

ii) 

Standards etc. mentioned above. 

There are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the company to 
monitor and ensure compliances with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period, the following event occurred which has bearing on the Company’s affairs in 
pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standard etc.

2. The Company has allotted 7,75,000 Equity Shares pursuant to conversion of fully convertible warrants. 

Annexure-A” and form an integral part of this 
report. 

For RSM & Co.
Company Secretaries

CS RAVI SHARMA
Partner
FCS: 4468 | COP No.: 3666
UDIN: F004468G000989936
Peer Review Cert. No. 978/2020 

th August, 2025
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Annexure-A to Secretarial Audit Report

The Members

the Institute of Company Secretaries of India. These standards required that the auditor complies with statutory and regulatory 
requirements and plans and performs the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about compliance with applicable laws and 
regulations and maintenance of records. 

Our Report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

Maintenance of Secretarial records is the responsibility of the Management of the Company. Our responsibility is to 

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the 

basis for our opinion. 

Regulations and happening of events etc. 

5. 

6. 
effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company 

For RSM & Co.
Company Secretaries

CS RAVI SHARMA
Partner
FCS: 4468 | COP No.: 3666
UDIN: F004468G000989936
Peer Review Cert. No. 978/2020 

th August, 2025
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ANNEXURE B

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES FOR FINANCIAL YEAR 2024-25
1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company.

2. CSR Activities During the Financial Year 2024–25:
 During the year under review, the Company primarily focused its CSR efforts in the areas of:

Promoting education

Rural area development projects, aimed at improving infrastructure, health, and sanitation in underdeveloped 
regions.

responsible and inclusive growth.

Sl.
No.

Name of Director Designation/
Nature of
Directorship

Number of 
meetings of 

CSR Committee 
held during 

the year

Number of meetings 
of CSR Committee 

attended during the 
year

Mr. Snehdeep Aggarwal Chairperson
2 Member

Ms. Sannovanda Machaiah Swathi Member

disclosed on the website of the company at: 

Not Applicable
5. 

Not Applicable.
6. Rs. 22,72,40,398/-
7. Rs. 45,44,808/-

b. NIL
c. Rs. 81,389/-
d. NIL

8. Rs. 44,63,419/-
9. 

Total Amount 
Spent for the 
F i n a n c i a l 
Year (in Rs.)

Amount Unspent (in Rs.)

Total Amount transferred to Unspent 
CSR Account as per section 135(6) under Schedule VII as per second proviso 

to section 135(5)

Amount (in Rs.) Date of transfer Name of the 
Fund

Amount Date of 
transfer

(b) 
(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10) (11)
Sl.
No.

Name of the 
Project

Item from 
the list of 

activities in 
Schedule 
VII to the 

Act

Local 
area 
(Yes/ 
No)

Location of the 
project

Project 
duration

Amount 
allocated 
for the 

project (in 
Rs.)

Amount 
spent in 

the current 

Year (in Rs.)

Amount 
transferred to 
Unspent CSR 
Account for 

the project as 
per Section 

135(6) (in Rs.)

Mode of 
Implementa 
tion-Direct 
(Yes/No)

Mode of 
Implementation – 

Through
Implementing Agency

State District Name CSR
Registration 

number

CSR PROIECT 
II No Delhi 

NCR/ Chennai/
One Year Yes N.A. N.A.

TOTAL 21,00,000/- 11,07,000/- 9,93,000/-
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(c) 

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)

Sl.
No.

Name of 
the Project

Item from the 
list of activities 
in schedule VII 

to the Act

Local 
area 
(Yes/ 
No)

Location of the project Amount spent 
for the project 

(in Rs.)

Mode of 
imple-

mentati 
on- Di-

rect 
(Yes/
No)

Mode of 
implementation – 

Through implementing 
agency

State District Name CSR
registration 

number

PROJECT 

25

Rural Development Yes Tamil Nadu Yes Not 
Applicable

2 PROJECT 

25

Rural Development 

of sports facilities 
for students

Yes
Tamil Nadu Tamil Nadu

No Chaman 

School

PROJECT 

25

Rural Development 

of road

Yes Tamil Nadu Yes Not 
Applicable

TOTAL Rs. 25,07,379/-

(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: NIL

(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Not Applicable

(f) Rs. 36,14,379/-

(g) Rs. 1,43,960/-

Sl.
No.

Preceding 
Financial 

Year

Amount 
transferred to 
Unspent CSR 

Account under 
section 135 (6) (in 

Rs.)

Amount 
spent in the 
reporting

Financial Year 
(in Rs.)

Amount transferred to any fund 

per section 135(6), if any.

Amount 
remaining to be 

spent
in succeeding 

(in Rs.)

Name of 
the Fund

Amount 
(in Rs)

Date of 
transfer

(h) 

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9)

Sl.
No.

Project
ID

Name 
of the
Project

Financial
Year in 

which the 
project was 
commenced

Project 
duration

Total 
amount

allocated 
for the 
project
(in Rs.)

Amount 
spent on 

the project 
in the 

reporting 
Financial 

Year (in Rs)

Cumulative 
amount spent 

at the end 
of reporting 

Financial Year 
(in Rs.)

Status of 
the project-
Completed/ 

Ongoing

N.A.

 In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or acquired 
Not Applicable

 
Not Applicable

 For and on behalf of the Board

 Manoj Khattar  Snehdeep Aggarwal

th
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ANNEXURE C

Information in accordance with the provisions of Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014:

a. Conservation of Energy

 Although the operations of the Company are not energy intensive, it continues to adopt measures for conservation of 

b. Technology Absorption

c. 

d. Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

 For and on behalf of the Board

 Snehdeep Aggarwal
 Chairman

th August, 2025  DIN: 00928080
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

(A) COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY

and continues to evolve with the changing business environment. As a responsible corporate citizen, the Company is 

(B) BOARD OF DIRECTORS

supervision, and performance of the Company. It offers visionary leadership and strategic foresight while upholding 

critical issues.

1. Composition of the Board, Other Directorships and Committee Memberships

st

conducted with objectivity, independence, and transparency.

ensuring effective governance and oversight.

 Details regarding the directorships held by each Director in other public companies and their memberships/chairmanships 

Name Director 

Number

Date of 
Appointment#

Category of Directors Directorships 
in other 

Indian Public 
Limited 

Companies

Memberships/ 
Chairmanships of 
other Committees

List of Directorship 
held in Other 

Listed Companies 
and Category of 

DirectorshipChairperson Member

Mr. Snehdeep Aggarwal 00928080

5

Moore Jr. Independent Director

Independent Director
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Name Director 

Number

Date of 
Appointment#

Category of Directors Directorships 
in other 

Indian Public 
Limited 

Companies

Memberships/ 
Chairmanships of 
other Committees

List of Directorship 
held in Other 

Listed Companies 
and Category of 

DirectorshipChairperson Member

Ms. Sannovanda 
Machaiah Swathi Independent Director

5

Independent Director 

Independent Director

Independent Director

Independent Director

Independent Director

 Additional Notes on Board Composition:

i) The Directorships stated above do not include:

 The number of Directorships held by each Director is well within the limits prescribed under the Companies Act, 

www.bhartiya.com.

applicable rules.

none of the Directors are related to each other.

2. Number of Board Meetings
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th

th

th

th

th February, 2025

31st March, 2025, and at 
the previous Annual General Meeting (AGM)

Name of Director No. of Board Meetings 
Attended *

Attendance at Last AGM

Mr. Snehdeep Aggarwal 5 Absent

5 Present

5 Absent

5 Absent

Ms. Sannovanda Machaiah Swathi 5 Absent

5 Absent

5 Absent

5 Present

3. Selection of Independent Directors

 In identifying suitable candidates, the Committee considers individuals who possess a high level of integrity, professional 

 All appointments are made in accordance with the terms and conditions available on the Company’s website at 
www.bhartiya.com.

of the management.
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4. Skills/expertise/competencies of the Board

Name of the Directors
as required in the context of its business(es) and sector(s)

Mr. Snehdeep Aggarwal
Strategy and Corporate Management

r

Ms. Sannovanda Machaiah 
Swathi

environment, has represented the country and the Defense Services internationally on 
several occasions.

5. Information Supplied to the Board

presentations and discussions held during the meetings.

6. Post Meeting Mechanism

7. Board Support

as on matters of corporate governance.

8. Shareholding of Non-Executive Directors

st

Name of the Directors No. of shares held

Mr. Snehdeep Aggarwal
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9. Roles, Responsibilities and Duties of the Board

Directors).

all applicable legal and regulatory requirements.

10. Independent Directors

Independent Director upon their appointment and is also disclosed on the Company’s website at www.bhartiya.com.

Time Director or Managing Director in any other listed company.

11. Familiarization Program for Independent Directors

 At the time of appointing an Independent Director, the Company issues a formal letter of appointment to the concerned 

The Director is also provided with detailed information regarding compliance requirements under the Companies Act, 

familiarize them with the Company’s operations.

Directors covering a wide range of subjects, including the Company’s business and operations (including subsidiaries 

and responsibilities of Independent Directors under various statutes.

 Details of the familiarisation program for Independent Directors are available on the Company’s website and can 
be accessed here: 

Policy in place.

 

Directors abstain from participating in discussions and refrain from voting on any matter where they have a personal 
interest or concern.
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(C) COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

respective Charters.

their review and noting.

1. AUDIT COMMITTEE

i. Composition

Machaiah Swathi as members.

 The Audit Committee’s responsibilities include, but are not limited to:

Disclosure Requirements Regulations.

 To effectively discharge its duties, the Audit Committee is empowered to investigate any matter within its terms of 

 The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary of the Audit Committee. The Statutory Auditors, Internal Auditors, and 

ii. Meetings and Attendance during the Financial Year 2024-25

Committee meetings. The requisite quorum was present at all the meetings.

summarizes the attendance of the Audit Committee members during the year:

Director 29.05.2024 09.08.2024 12.11.2024 12.02.2025

P P P P

P P P P

Ms. Sannovanda Machaiah Swathi P P P P
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iii. Terms of Reference

 

c. Approving payments to statutory auditors for audit and any other services rendered.

f. Reviewing management reports on the use and application of funds raised through public issues, rights issues, 
preferential issues, etc., including monitoring agency reports on utilization, and recommending corrective 
action.

g. Monitoring the independence, performance, and effectiveness of statutory auditors and the audit process.

h. Approving or modifying related party transactions.

l. Reviewing performance of statutory, cost, and internal auditors and adequacy of internal control systems.

discussions for concerns.

q. Investigating reasons for substantial defaults, if any, in payments to depositors, debenture holders, shareholders 
(in case of dividend defaults), and creditors.

t. Framing and reviewing policies related to the Company’s Code of Conduct and the Code for Prevention of 
Insider Trading, and supervising their implementation.
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w. Reviewing the following information:

subsidiary’s asset size, whichever is lower.

2. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

(i) Composition

Secretary acts as Secretary of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. The Composition of Remuneration and 

 The Nomination and Remuneration Committee met two times during the year. The necessary quorum was present for 
the Meeting. The table below provides the Attendance of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee members:

Director 29.05.2024 09.08.2024

P P

P P

Ms. Sannovanda Machaiah Swathi P P

(iii) Terms of reference

e. Payment of remuneration to the directors shall be approved by a resolution passed by the Nomination and 
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implemented by the Company from time to time including:

performance of its duties.

3. STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

i. Composition

follows:

 The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Committee.

ii. Meetings and Attendance (FY 2024–25)

grievances. The meetings included discussion on the nature of grievances received and their resolution status.

Director 29.05.2024 09.08.2024 07.10.2024 12.02.2025 28.03.2025

P P P P P

P P P P P

Ms. Sannovanda Machaiah 
Swathi

P P P P P
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iii. Terms of Reference

a. Oversee and review and approve all matters connected with the transfer, transposition and transmission of the 

g. To perform all functions relating to the interests of shareholders/ investors of the Company as may be required 

st March 2025, the Company did not receive any investor complaints. As such, 
st March, 2025.

4. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) COMMITTEE

i. Composition

 The Committee comprises the following three Directors:

effectively.

 The Committee is responsible for formulating and monitoring the implementation of the CSR Policy and 

ii. Meetings and Attendance during FY 2024–25
st

implementation of the Company’s CSR policy and initiatives.

Director 29.05.2024 09.08.2024 12.11.2024 12.02.2025

Mr. Snehdeep Aggarwal A P P P

P P P P

Ms. Sannovanda Machaiah Swathi P P P P

 Terms of reference

there under.

d. To disseminate factually correct information to investors, institutions and the public at large.

performance of its duties.

fees.
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5. MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

i. Composition

 The Management Committee comprises three members:

ii. Meetings and Attendance during the Financial Year 2024–25

management matters.

Meetings Directors

Mr. Snehdeep Aggarwal Mr. Manoj Khattar Mr. Vivek Kapur

P P A

P P A

A P P

P P A

P P A

P P A

P P A

P P A

P P A

P P A

P P A

Terms of Reference

b. Authorisation for dealing/liaising with various Statutory/Regulatory authorities including state, central 

etc.

(D) COMPLIANCE OFFICER

yogesh.gautam@bhartiya.com
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(E) SENIOR MANAGEMENT

 Particulars of Senior Management as on March 31, 2025:

S. No. Name Designation Change (Appointment/ 
Resignation) during FY 2024-25

2. Company Secretary

(F) REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

 Remuneration to Whole-Time Director (Executive Director)

 

Name of the Director Salary (Rs.) Stock Options Notice Period

 Remuneration to Non- Executive Directors

Name of the Director Board Meeting 
Fees (Rs.) *

Committee Meeting 
Fees (Rs.) *

Total (Rs.)

Mr. Snehdeep Aggarwal

Ms. Sannovanda Machaiah Swathi

 

held on 27th

Company.

provisions related to salary, variable pay, service terms, notice period, and severance, where applicable.

(G) BOARD EVALUATION

Committees and Directors.
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evaluation.

composition and effectiveness of Meetings. The Directors were evaluated on aspects such as attendance, contribution at 

th March, 2025 without the presence 

(H) MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

Directors and members of the management.

 During the meeting, the Independent Directors discussed, inter alia, the following matters:

(I) GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

Annual 
General 
Meeting 
(AGM)

Date Time of 
AGM

Location No. of 
Special 

Resolutions 
passed

th 27th

A.M.

th rd

A.M.

th 29th

A.M.
2

th 29th September, 2022

 Special Resolution proposed to be passed by way of Postal Ballot
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(J) CREDIT RATING

th

 

(K) MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

 
shareholders, investors, and the public through various modes as outlined below:

1. Financial Results

2. Publication of Results

o Results are published in widely circulated newspapers:

3. Website Disclosure

4. Annual Report

circulated to all shareholders.

5. Electronic Filing with Stock Exchanges

through:

6. Investor Presentations and Updates

made available on the Company’s website.

shared with shareholders.

7. Dedicated Investor Relations Section

o A dedicated “Investor Relations” section on the Company’s website provides:

o Financial information, shareholding patterns, and policies

o Information of interest to shareholders, analysts, and the general public
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(L) GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

AGM: Date, Time and Mode: Day and Date: Monday, 29th

2. Financial Calendar for 2024-25

th June 2025: th of August, 2025
th September 2025: th of November, 2025
st December 2025: th of February, 2025

st March 2026: th of May, 2026
rd September, 2025 to Monday, the 29th 

September, 2025 (both days inclusive)

Dividend Payment Date: Not applicable

 Listing on Stock Exchanges & Stock Code

6. Exclusive E-mail Id For Communication of Investors’ Grievances

sm@masserv.com/ shares@bhartiya.com
grievances, if any.

 NSE:

Months BIL Months NSE Nifty

High (Rs.) Low (Rs.) Average 
(Rs.)

High (Rs.) Low (Rs.) Average 
(Rs.)

257.00 22280.50

509.00

679.85

587.25 25907.60

827.00 678.75 752.88

852.00 22786.90

22956.08

580.00
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 BSE

Months BIL Months BSE SENSEX

High (Rs.) Low (Rs.) Average 
(Rs.)

High (Rs.) Low (Rs.) Average 
(Rs.)

76009.68

509.95

78295.86

85978.25 80895.05

780.00

829.95 655.55

792.05 77560.79

850.00 80072.99 75267.59 77670.29

596.95 75687.62
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8. Registrar & Share Transfer Agent  :  MAS Services Ltd.

info@masserv.com

9. Share Transfer System:

10. Distribution of Shareholding as on 31st March, 2025.

No. of Shares
Shareholders Shareholding

Number % to total Number % to total

Upto 500 2.27

0.88

0.90 0.87

22 0.62

96875 0.75

72

Total 4892 100.00 12984411 100.00

11. Shareholding Pattern as on 31st March, 2025

Category No. of Share held % of Paid-up Capital

Persons acting in concert

0.00

Directors and relatives

Clearing Members 0.00

Total 12984411 100.00

12. Dematerialization of shares and liquidity share : st

has been dematerialized.

13. Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any 
convertible instruments, conversion date and 
likely impact on equity

: During the year under review, the Company allotted 

Convertible Warrants on a preferential basis to M/s. 

Company. Out of the total warrants allotted, 7,75,000 
warrants were converted into equity shares during the 

outstanding as on the date of this report.

14. Plant Locations :
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15. Address for Correspondence :

shares@bhartiya.com

 

shares@bhartiya.com

(M)  DISCLOSURES:

1. Compliance with Listing Regulations

2. Related Party Transactions

is available on Company’s website at 
TRANSACTIONS.pdf 

 The Policy intends to ensure that proper reporting, approval and disclosure processes are in place for all transactions 
between the Company and its Related Parties. All Related Party Transactions are placed before the Audit Committee 
for review and approval. Prior omnibus approval is obtained for Related Party Transactions, which are of repetitive 

3. Preparation of Financial Statements

accounting policies, which have been applied consistently, are disclosed in the Notes to the Financial Statements 
forming part of this Annual Report.

4. Risk Management

and appropriately mitigated.

5. Commodity Price Risks and Hedging Activities

managed through effective inventory management, vendor development practices, and supply chain planning. The 
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6. Compliance with Capital Market Regulations

7. Utilization of Funds Raised through Preferential Allotment or QIP

issued and allotment 12,01,000 (Twelve Lakhs One Thousand) Fully Convertible Warrants (“Warrants”) 
at an issue price of Rs. 430/- (Rupees Four Hundred and Thirty Only) per Warrant. These Warrants are 
convertible into Equity Shares, amounting to an aggregate consideration of Rs. 51,64,30,000/- (Rupees Fifty-
One Crores Sixty-Four Lakhs Thirty Thousand Only).

 Out of total, 7,75,000 (Seven Lakhs Seventy-Five Thousand) Warrants were duly converted into Equity 
19th March, 

2025. 

summary of utilization of funds is as follows:

S.
No.

Particulars Amount allocated 
as per Placement 

Document
(In INR Lakhs)

Amount Utilized 
as on date of this 

report (In INR Lakhs)

requirement of the Company.

2. For Factory Refurbishment and addition of Plant 250.00 250.00

Total 5164.30 3790.45

Report.

9. Non-Acceptance of Committee Recommendations

10. Fees Paid to Statutory Auditors

 Disclosure of total fees for all services paid on a consolidated basis by the Company and its subsidiaries to the 

provided in:

11. Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy

and employees to report unethical behavior, fraud, or violations of the Company’s Code of Conduct.
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 The mechanism ensures adequate safeguards against victimization of employees and Directors who avail themselves 

review.

12. Demat Suspense Account / Unclaimed Suspense Account

 The Company does not have any shares lying in the Demat Suspense Account or Unclaimed Suspense Account as 

13. SUBSIDIARY COMPANY

and the same is available on the Company’s website at www.bhartiya.com.

 The performance of subsidiary companies is regularly monitored by the Company through the following means:

periodic basis.

for its perusal.

14. 

 Further, during the year under review, neither the Company nor its subsidiaries have given any loans or advances, 

(N) NON-MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS

(ii) The Internal Auditor reports to the Audit Committee.

(O) INSIDER TRADING CODE

 The object of the PIT Regulations is to curb the practice of insider trading in the securities of a listed Company.

 The Company has adopted an ‘Internal Code of Conduct for Regulating, Monitoring and Reporting of Trades by Insiders’ 
(“the Code”) in accordance with the requirements of the PIT Regulations.

 The Company has also formulated ‘The Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price 

 Code of Conduct

www.bhartiya.com.

Aggarwal, Chairman, is attached to this report.
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operations, we rely on our Employee Code of Conduct, which outlines our values and describes our standards for 

conduct and compliance with both the letter and the spirit of all laws, rules, and regulations, and our company’s policies, 
standards, and procedures.

(P) NSE ELECTRONIC APPLICATIONS PROCESSING SYSTEMS (NEAPS) AND BSE LISTING CENTER

(Q) SEBI COMPLAINT REDRESS SYSTEM (SCORES)

 SMART ODR PORTAL

 The ODR Portal provides investors with an additional mechanism to resolve their grievances in cases where they are not 

Complaints Redress System (SCORES) at any stage.

 The ODR Portal can be accessed at: https://smartodr.in/login 

 .

(R) MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT (MDA)

 MDA is attached separately in this Annual Report.

(S) RECONCILIATION OF SHARE CAPITAL AUDIT:

physical form.

(T) Corporate Identity Number (CIN)

 

(U) Transfer of unclaimed / unpaid amounts / shares to the Investor Education and Protection Fund 
(IEPF):
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 Dividend amounts, Application money, Principal and interest amounts on debentures and deposits, Sale proceeds of 
fractional shares, Redemption amounts of preference shares, etc., that remain unpaid or unclaimed for a period of seven 
(7) consecutive years from the date they became due for payment.

 Further, as per the IEPF Rules, the Company is also required to transfer the underlying shares in respect of which dividends 

such transfer.

 In compliance with the above provisions, during the year under review, the Company has:

 Transferred the unclaimed dividend amounts outstanding for a period of seven consecutive years, and

 Transferred the corresponding shares in respect of which such dividends have not been claimed, to the IEPF Authority.

Particulars Amount in Dividend (In Rs.) No. of Shares

Final Dividend 2016-17 5987

Total 144537.60 5987

 The Members who have a claim on the above dividends and shares may claim the same from the IEPF Authority by 

website on  portal

 The Company strongly recommends shareholders to encash/claim their respective dividend within the period given 
below from the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agents:

Financial Year 
Ended

Date by which unclaimed dividend amount will be credited/transferred to the 
“Investor Education and Protection Fund”

N.A.
N.A.
N.A.
N.A.
N.A.
N.A.

 Whilst the Company has already written to the Members, informing them about the due dates for transfer to IEPF for 

Report. The data on unpaid/ unclaimed dividend and other unclaimed monies is also available on the Company’s website 
at www.bhartiya.com under Investor Relations section. Those claimants who have not yet encashed their unclaimed/
unpaid amounts are requested to correspond with the Company/ Registrar and Transfer Agents, at the earliest. Members 
may refer to the Refund Procedure for claiming the amounts transferred to the IEPF Authority as detailed on http://www.
iepf.gov.in/IEPF/refund.html .

yogesh.gautam@bhartiya.com.

remained unclaimed or unpaid for a period of seven consecutive years or more, to Investor Education and Protection Fund 
Authority (IEPF Authority).
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(V) Dematerialization of Shares – Process

 Shareholders who continue to hold shares in physical form are requested to dematerialize their shares at the earliest and 

dematerialized is given hereunder:

a. Demat account should be opened with a Depository Participant (DP).

their DP.

c. DP will process the DRF and will generate a Dematerialization Request Number (DRN).

e. RTA will process the DRF and update the status to DP/ Depositories.

maintained with the DP.

(W) Nomination Facility

 Your Company is pleased to offer the facility of nomination to members. Pursuant to Section 72 of the Companies Act, 

the duly complete nomination form, available on the website of the Company www.bhartiya.com, to the Registrar and 
Share transfer Agent of the Company. The Members, who hold shares in the electronic form and wish to avail nomination 
facility, are requested to send separate request to their respective Depository Participant(s) only.

(X) Consolidation of Folios and avoidance of Multiple Mailing

 In order to enable the Company to reduce costs and duplication of efforts for investor servicing, members who may have 
more than one folio in their individual name or jointly with other persons mentioned in the same order, are requested 
to consolidate all similar holdings under one folio. This would help in monitoring the folios more effectively. Members 
may write to the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent at their address given earlier, indicating the folio numbers to be 
consolidated.

(Y) National Electronic Clearing Services (NECS) Mandate

National Electronic Clearing Service (NECS), Electronic Clearing Service (ECS) mandates, nominations, power of attorney, 

in physical form are requested to intimate such changes to Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent.



52

BHARTIYA INTERNATIONAL LTD.

CODE OF CONDUCT DECLARATION

Declaration

st March, 2025.

Sd/-
Snehdeep Aggarwal

th May, 2025   Chairman

CEO/CFO CERTIFICATION

st March, 2025)

To,

st March, 2025 and that to the 

accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

st March, 
2025 are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the company’s code of conduct.

the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware, have been disclosed to the Auditors and 

reporting.

For and on behalf of the Board

th May, 2025
Manoj Khattar Raj Kumar Chawla
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS
(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)
To,
The Members

(DIN) status at the portal (www.mca.gov.in
st 

conducted the affairs of the Company.

For RSM & Co.
Company Secretaries

Sd/-
CS RAVI SHARMA

Partner
FCS: 4468 | COP No.: 3666

UDIN: F004468G000989914
New Delhi, th August, 2025  Peer Review Cert. No 978/2020

CERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE CONDITIONS OF CORPORATE

GOVERNANCE UNDER SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE  
REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015

To,
The Members

st

limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring compliance of the conditions of the 

effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

For RSM & Co.
Company Secretaries

Sd/-
CS RAVI SHARMA

Partner
FCS: 4468 | COP No.: 3666

UDIN: F004468G000989925
New Delhi, th August, 2025  Peer Review Cert. No 978/2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To the Members of
Bhartiya International Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of Bhartiya International Limited (‘the Holding 
Company’) and its subsidiaries (the Holding company and its subsidiaries together referred to as ‘the Group’) and its associate 
comprising the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st

Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 

subsidiaries and associates, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies 
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting 
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, 
as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the Consolidated State of Affairs of 

Basis for Opinion

responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated 

by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of 

have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of their report referred to in the other matters 

Key Audit Matters

Key Audit Matters Auditor’s Response
Revenue Recognition:
Revenue from the sale of goods (hereinafter referred to 
as ‘’Revenue’’ is recognized when Company performs 
its obligation to its customers and the amount of 
revenue can be measured reliably and recovery of the 

recognition in case of sale of goods is when the control 

considers revenue as a key measure for evaluation of 

Principal audit procedures performed:
Assessed the Company’s revenue recognition accounting 
policies in line with the Ind AS 115 (‘’Revenue from Contracts 

Evaluated the integrity of the general information and technology 
control environment and testing the operating effectiveness of 

Evaluated the design, implementation and operating 
effectiveness of Company’s control in respect of revenue 

the year-end
On a sample basis, tested supporting documentation for sales 
transactions recorded during the year which included sales 

Performed an increased level of substantive testing in respect of 
sales transactions recorded during the period closer to the year 
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Information Other than the Financial Statement and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial 
Statements

statements in terms of the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view of the Consolidated Financial Position, 
Consolidated Financial Performance (including other comprehensive income), Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 
and Consolidated Cash Flows of the Group including its associates in accordance with the accounting principles generally 

of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets and for preventing 
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments 

controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to 
the preparation and presentation of the Consolidated Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from 

 Board of 
and of its associates are responsible for assessing the ability of the group and its associates to continue as a going concern, 
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 

higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, 

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate 

controls
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Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit 

 
been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of 

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities included in the 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought 

rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences 

Other Matters

lacs as at 31st March, 2025 total revenues of Rs

prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in their countries and which have been audited by other 

opinion in so far as it related to the balances and affairs of such subsidiaries located outside India is based on the report of 

 
31st

amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries and associates, and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of 
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Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of India 

(a) 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated 

(c) 

(d) 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on 31st March, 

st

(f) 

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements of section 

given to us, the remuneration paid/ provided by the Holding Company and its Indian Subsidiaries to its directors 

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies 

 

and the other auditors of such subsidiaries and associates respectively that, to the best of their knowledge 
and belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or 
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) 
by the Company or any of such subsidiaries and associates to or in any other person or entity, including 
foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that 
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and the other auditors of such subsidiaries and associates respectively that, to the best of their knowledge 
and belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by 
the Company or any of such subsidiaries and associates from any person or entity, including foreign entity 
(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company or 
any of such subsidiaries and associates shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities 

c)  Based on the audit procedures performed by us and that performed by the auditors of the subsidiaries and 

come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 

v)  No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the holding Company or its subsidiaries and 

respective auditors of the subsidiaries and associates of the Holding Company which are companies incorporated 

year commencing on 1st April, 2023, have used accounting software for maintaining their books of account 
which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same have been operated throughout 

respective auditors of the above referred subsidiaries and associates did not come across any instance of audit 

for Sushil Poddar & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Ambrish Rastogi
Partner

2
Gurugram, 29th May, 2025
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Annexure A 

31st March, 2025

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Sr. No.  Name of the entities CIN Holding Company/ 
Subsidiary

Clause number of 
the CARO report

1 Bhartiya International Ltd Holding Company Clause (i)(c)

for Sushil Poddar & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Ambrish Rastogi
Partner

2

Gurugram, 29th May, 2025
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ANNEXURE B TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies 
Act, 2013(‘the Act’)

st March, 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

reporting criteria established by the Holding Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 

to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 

Auditors’ Responsibility

Reporting (the ‘Guidance Note’) issued by ICAI and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed 

with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal 

procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of their 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

policies and procedures that 

of the assets of the Company; 

made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and 

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of 
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Opinion

In our opinion, the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India, have, in all 

statements were operating effectively as at 31st

established by the Holding Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on 

Other Matters

 
31st March, 2025, in respect of two associate companies, which are companies covered under the Act, whose internal 

audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the management and our report on the adequacy and 

for Sushil Poddar & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Ambrish Rastogi
Partner

2

Gurugram, 29th May , 2025
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2025
Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars Note 
No.

 As at  
31st March, 2025 

 As at  
31st March, 2024 

I Assets     
 1 Non - Current Assets    
 (a) Property, Plant and Equipment  5  13,277.18 
 (b) Capital Work-in-Progress  263.92 
 (c)  773.15 
 (d) Investment in Property  496.68 
 (e) Goodwill   25.25 
 (f) Intangible Assets  7  1,371.52 
 (g) Investments Accounted for using Equity Method  4,373.35 
 (h) Financial Assets    
 (i) Investments  9  35.00 
 (ii)  10  972.93 
 (i)   55.06 
 (j) Other Non-Current Assets  11  57.34 
 2 Current Assets    
 (a) Inventories  12  62,053.84 
 (b) Financial Assets    
 (i) Investments  13  -  - 
 (ii)  18,785.53 
 (iii) Cash and Cash Equivalents  15  1,197.93 
 (iv)  6,475.20 
 (v) Loans  17  237.73 
 (vi) Others Financial Assets  3,577.35 
 (c)   192.22 
 (d) Other Current Assets  19  3,021.93 
 TOTAL ASSETS   1,17,243.11 
II Equity and Liabilities    
 1 Equity     
 (a) Equity Share Capital  20  1,298.44 
 (b) Other Equity  21  43,556.92 
 2  Liabilities    
 Non - Current Liabilities    
 (a) Financial Liabilities    
 (i) Borrowings  22  6,572.82 
 (ii) Lease Liability   331.09 
 (iii) Other Financial Liabilities  23  135.11 
 (b) Provisions  155.57 
 (c) Other Non-Current Liabilities  25  71.07 
 (d)   796.18 
 Current Liabilities    
 (a) Financial Liabilities    
 (i) Borrowings  40,872.71 
 (ii) Lease Liability   125.46 
 (iii)  27   
 

enterprises
  1,399.07 

 
enterprises and small enterprises

  18,774.87 

 (iv) Other Financial Liabilities  1,995.11 
 (c) Provisions  29  186.89 
 (d) Other Current Liabilities  30  323.27 
 (e)   648.53 
 TOTAL OF EQUITY AND LIABILITIES   1,17,243.11 
 Material Accounting Policies  
  1 to 50   

As per our report of even date attached
For SUSHIL PODDAR & CO. For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants

Ambrish Rastogi Yogesh Kumar Gautam Raj Kumar Chawla Manoj Khattar Vivek Kapur

Gurugram, 29th May, 2025
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CONSOLIDATED  STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2025

Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars Note 

No.
 Year Ended  

31st March, 2025 
 Year Ended  

31st March, 2024 
 INCOME    
 Revenue from Operations 31  1,02,926.27 
 Other Income 32  443.77 
 Total Income   1,03,370.04 
 EXPENSES    
 Cost of Material Consumed 33  42,269.43 
   17,621.09 
  1,044.67 
 35  6,897.01 
 Finance Costs  4,539.01 
 37  2,575.38 
  26,051.85 
 Total Expenses   1,00,998.44 
 

Associate 
  2,371.60 

   123.25 
III   2,494.85 
   -  - 
   2,494.85 
 Tax Expenses 39   
 I   947.76 
 ii   (15.57)
   1,562.66 
 Other Comprehensive Income    
    
   (45.06)
   11.41 
 Total Other Comprehensive Income for the Year (B)   (33.65)
 Total Comprehensive Income for the Year   1,529.01 
    
 Owners   1,566.48 
 Non-controlling Interests   (3.82)
 Other Comprehensive income Attributable to :    
 Owners   (33.62)
 Non-controlling Interests   (0.03)  - 
 Total Comprehensive income Attributable to :    
 Owners   1,532.86 
 Non-controlling Interests   (3.85)
 Earnings per equity share of Face Value    
 Basic (in Rupees)   12.77 
   12.47 
 Material Accounting Policies   
 

statements
1 to 
50

  

As per our report of even date attached
For SUSHIL PODDAR & CO. For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants

Ambrish Rastogi Yogesh Kumar Gautam Raj Kumar Chawla Manoj Khattar Vivek Kapur

Gurugram, 29th May, 2025



64

BHARTIYA INTERNATIONAL LTD.

C
O

N
SO

LI
D

A
TE

D
 S

TA
TE

M
EN

T 
O

F 
C
H

A
N

G
ES

 I
N

 E
Q

U
IT

Y
FO

R
 T

H
E 

Y
EA

R
 E

N
D

ED
 3

1
ST

 M
A

R
C
H

, 
2
0
2
5

Eq
u
it
y
 S

h
a
re

 C
a
p
it
a
l 

 
R
s.

 in
 L

a
k

h
s

Pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
s

N
ot

es
A

m
ou

nt

Ba
la

nc
e 

as
 a

t 3
1s

t M
ar

ch
, 2

02
3

Ba
la

nc
e 

as
 a

t 3
1s

t M
ar

ch
, 2

02
5

O
th

er
 E

q
u
it
y
 (

R
ef

er
 n

o
te

 n
o
. 

2
1
)

Pa
rti

cu
la

rs
Re

se
rv

es
 a

nd
 S

ur
pl

us
  

To
ta

l

Pr
ef

er
en

tia
l 

sh
ar

e 
w

ar
ra

nt
 

pe
nd

in
g 

fo
r s

ha
re

 
al

lo
tm

en
t

 E
m

pl
oy

ee
 

St
oc

k 
O

pt
io

ns
 

ou
ts

ta
nd

in
g  

Pr
ef

er
en

-
tia

l s
ha

re
 

W
ar

ra
nt

 
Fo

rf
ei

te
d 

N
on

-c
on

-
tro

lli
ng

  
In

te
re

st
 

 F
or

ei
gn

 
Cu

rr
en

cy
 

Tr
an

sla
tio

n 
Re

se
rv

e 
(F

CT
R)

 

Ca
pi

ta
l  

Re
se

rv
e

 S
ec

ur
iti

es
 

Pr
em

iu
m

  
G

en
er

al
  

Re
se

rv
e

Re
ta

in
ed

  
Ea

rn
in

gs
 O

th
er

 C
om

-
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 

Ba
la

nc
e 

as
 a

t 3
1s

t M
ar

ch
, 2

02
3

 -   
 8

9.
43

 
 9

25
.7

5 
 1

36
.0

4 
 8

03
.1

7 
 8

,4
70

.7
7 

 7
,8

59
.2

4 
 3

,6
25

.3
8 

 1
5,

61
7.

17
 

 3
8.

85
 

37
,5

65
.8

0 

 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   

O
the

r c
om

pr
eh

en
siv

e 
inc

om
e 

fo
r t

he
 ye

ar
 

 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   

 -   

Cu
rre

nc
y F

luc
tua

tio
n 

Re
se

rv
e

 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   

 -   

M
on

ey
 R

ec
eiv

ed
 d

ur
ing

 th
e 

ye
ar

 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   

 -   

Ba
la

nc
e 

as
 a

t 3
1s

t M
ar

ch
, 2

02
4

 -   
 -   

 9
25

.7
5 

 1
33

.5
3 

 9
92

.9
4 

 8
,4

70
.7

7 
 7

,8
69

.9
9 

 3
,7

04
.9

7 
 1

5,
63

9.
45

 
 4

0.
73

 
 3

7,
77

8.
13

 

 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   

O
the

r c
om

pr
eh

en
siv

e 
inc

om
e 

fo
r t

he
 ye

ar
 

 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   

Iss
ue

 o
f s

ha
re

 w
ar

ra
nt 

du
rin

g 
the

 ye
ar

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-

Cu
rre

nc
y F

luc
tua

tio
n 

Re
se

rv
e

 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   

 -   

Ba
la

nc
e 

as
 a

t 3
1s

t M
ar

ch
, 2

02
5

 4
57

.9
5 

 -   
 9

25
.7

5 
 1

29
.6

8 
 1

,5
29

.7
7 

 8
,4

70
.7

7 
11

,1
24

.9
9 

 3
,7

04
.9

7 
 1

7,
20

5.
93

 
 7

.1
1 

43
,5

56
.9

2 

A
s 

pe
r o

ur
 re

po
rt 

of
 e

ve
n 

da
te

 a
tta

ch
ed

Fo
r 

SU
SH

IL
 P

O
D

D
A

R
 &

 C
O

. 
 

 
Fo

r 
a
n
d
 o

n
 b

eh
a
lf

 o
f 

th
e 

B
o
a
rd

C
ha

rte
re

d 
A

cc
ou

nt
an

ts

A
m

ri
sh

 R
a
st

o
g
i 

Y
o
g
es

h
 K

u
m

a
r 

G
a
u
ta

m
 

R
a
j K

u
m

a
r 

C
h
a
w

la
 

M
a
n
o
j K

h
a
tt

a
r 

V
iv

ek
 k

a
p
u
r

G
ur

ug
ra

m
, 2

9t
h 

M
ay

, 2
02

5 



65

BHARTIYA INTERNATIONAL LTD.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2025

Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars  Year Ended 
31st March, 2025 

 Year Ended 
31st March, 2024 

A. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

 2,494.85 

Adjustment for :

 (123.25)

Finance Cost  4,539.01 

 2,575.38 

 12.87 

Rental Income  (251.78)

Interest income  -  - 

Government grant income  (4.44)

   

 9,242.64 

Movements in working capital:

Increase/ (decrease) in trade payables  4,610.04 

 530.79 

Increase/ (decrease) in other liabilities  (56.94)

Increase/ (decrease) in provisions  3.76 

 (4,594.72)

 (4,400.43)

 (98.73)

 (587.72)

 (152.99)

 5.80 

 28.87 

Cash (used in) / Generated from Operations  4,530.37 

 (636.92)

Currency Fluctuation reserve consolidation  536.84 

Net cash (used in)/ generated from Operating Activities - (A)  4,430.29 

B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

 (742.50)

Capital advance/Capital creditors (net)  (3.71)

 3.07 

Proceeding from sale of current investments(net)  0.01 

Rental Income  251.78 

 (904.05)

Net cash from/ (used in) investing activities - (B)  (1,395.40)
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Particulars  Year Ended 
31st March, 2025 

 Year Ended 
31st March, 2024 

C. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds of long-term borrowings (net)  (3,166.87)

Proceeds from short-term borrowings (net)  (502.34)

Payment of lease Liability  (170.61)

Share warrant money received  457.95  - 

Share Capital including securities premium  3,332.50 

Interest and processing fees paid (net)  (4,493.04)

 (4,542.41)

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents - 
(A+B+C)

 (1,507.52)

Cash and cash equivalents as at beginning of the year  2,705.45 

Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year  1,197.93 

Components of cash and cash equivalents:

Cash on hand  13.94 

In current accounts  1,059.31 

In deposit accounts  124.68 

 1,197.93 

As per our report of even date attached
For SUSHIL PODDAR & CO. For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants

Ambrish Rastogi Yogesh Kumar Gautam Raj Kumar Chawla Manoj Khattar Vivek Kapur

Gurugram, 29th May, 2025

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2025

Rs. in Lakhs



67

BHARTIYA INTERNATIONAL LTD.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 CORPORATE INFORMATION

 Bhartiya International Limited ( ‘the Holding Company’) is a public limited company with domiciled in India and 

(hereinafter referred to as “the Group”) is engaged in the business of manufacturing and trading of leather products 

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION

 Based on the nature of products/activities and the time between acquisition of assets and their realisation in cash and 
cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current or non-

3 PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION

 Goodwill represents the difference between the Company’s share in the net worth of subsidiaries and the cost of 

4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4.1 Property, Plant and Equipment
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BHARTIYA INTERNATIONAL LTD.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).

4.2 Investment Properties

 Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by 

4.3 Intangible Assets

 Amortization of Intangible Assets-Brand at the overseas subsidiary are as per the rate applicable based on the 

4.4 Lease

 Company as a Lessee

(i)  Right-of-use Assets (ROU Assets)

right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease 

are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the 

(ii)  Lease Liabilities

 At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present 

incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is 
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BHARTIYA INTERNATIONAL LTD.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).

(iii)  Short-Term leases and Leases of Low-Value Assets

 Company as a Lessor

 Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of 

4.5 Inventories

price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to 

4.6 Cash & Cash Equivalents

deposits with banks, net of outstanding bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and are considered part 

 

 

4.8 Financial Instruments 

 Financial Assets
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BHARTIYA INTERNATIONAL LTD.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).

 Debt Instruments: 

(a)  Measured at Amortised Cost:

(b)  Measured at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income: 

are measured at fair value with all changes in fair value, including interest income and dividend income if 

 Equity Instruments:

 Derecognition

 Financial Liabilities

 Initial recognition and Measurement

 Subsequent Measurement

 Loans and Borrowings

 After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using 
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BHARTIYA INTERNATIONAL LTD.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).

 Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that 

 Trade and other Payable 

 Derecognition

 Derivative Instruments:

4.9 Provision and Contingent Liabilities 

 Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, 

4.10 Revenue Recognition

 Revenue from services

 Other operating revenue - Export incentives

 INTEREST INCOME 

 Interest income is recognized using the effective interest rate (EIR) method

 DIVIDEND INCOME 

4.11 Foreign Currency Translation

 Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).

4.12 Income Tax

 Current Tax

 Deferred Tax

4.13 Earning Per Share 

equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and the weighted average number of equity shares 

4.14 Borrowing Cost

 Borrowing cost includes interest, amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of 

of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized 

4.15 Government Grants

 Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the 

 Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and equipment are included in non-current liabilities 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).

4.16 Share Based Payment 

 Equity-settled share-based payments to employees are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments at the 

line basis over the vesting period, based on the Company’s estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, 

4.17 Critical Estimates and Judgements -

which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than 

 The areas involving critical estimates or judgement are:

 Provision and contingent liability

 Carry value of investment in associates 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).

5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT Rs. in Lakhs 

Particulars LAND OTHER THAN LAND  
Freehold Buildings Plant and 

Equipment
Furniture 

and 
Fixtures

Vehicles
Equipment

Computer 
Equipment 

Total

Gross Carrying Amount         
Balance as at  
31st March, 2023
Addition -  259 

- -  7  0 
Balance as at  
31st March, 2024

 255.70  8,286.71  8,695.29 1,512.53  303.53  483.27  374.33  19,911.36 

Addition - -
- -

Balance as at  
31st March, 2025

 255.70  8,286.71  9,048.86 1,555.19  330.25  520.28  151.24  20,148.23 

Accumulated 
Depreciation
Balance as at 31st 
March, 2023

 -   

Addition

Balance as at 31st 
March, 2024

 -   1,464.07  3,272.46  731.07  42.10  309.80  278.65  6,098.15 

Addition

Balance as at 31st 
March, 2025

 -   1,742.70  3,787.98  852.46  79.97  353.38  54.56  6,871.05 

Net carrying amount 
Balance as at  
31st March, 2024

 13,813.21 

Balance as at  
31st March, 2025

 13,277.18 

a)   Title deeds of Immovable Properties not held in name of the Company 

Relevant line 
item in the 

Balance Sheet

Description 
of item of 
Property

Gross 
Carrying 

Value

Title deeds 
held in the 
Name of

Whether title deed 
holder is a promoter 

or director or 
Relative of Promoter 

Director

Property 
held since 

which 
date

Reason for 
not being 
held in the 

name of the 
company

PPE Building Pardeep Goyal
Registration

 Capital Work in Progress  Rs. in Lakhs

31st March, 2024  129.06 
Addition  263.92 
Capitalised during the year  (129.06)
31st March, 2025  263.92 

  Ageing of Capital Work-in-Progress ageing  Rs. in Lakhs
 Amount in CWIP for a period of

Less than 
1 Year

1-2 
Year

2-3 Year More than 
3 Year

Total

31-Mar-25      
Projects in Process  -  -  -  263.92 
31-Mar-24      
Projects in Process  -  -  -  129.06 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).

5.2 RIGHT OF USE ASSETS Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars Land Building Total

Balance as at 31st March, 2023

Addition  -    -   

Addition  -    -   

Balance as at 31st March, 2025  532.34  993.61  1,525.95 

Balance as at 31st March, 2023

Addition

Addition

Balance as at 31st March, 2025  75.82  676.98  752.80 

Net carrying amount 

Balance as at 31st March, 2025  456.52  316.63  773.15 

6. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Particulars Land & Building

Gross Carrying Amount 

Balance as at 31st March, 2023

Addition

Balance as at 31st March, 2024  594.85 

Addition

Balance as at 31st March, 2025  594.85 

Accumulated Depreciation

Balance as at 31st March, 2023

Addition

Balance as at 31st March, 2024  87.26 

Addition

Balance as at 31st March, 2025  98.17 

Net Carrying Amount 

Balance as at 31st March, 2024

Balance as at 31st March, 2025  496.68 

Fair Value 

As at 31st March, 2024

As at 31st March, 2025 3,817.15
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).

Rs. in Lakhs

6.1 Particulars  Year Ended  
31st March, 2025 

 Year Ended  
31st March, 2024 

Rental income derived from investment properties  206.48 

generating rental income
 -    -   

Income arising from investment properties before 
depreciation

 206.48 

 10.91 
Income from investment properties (Net)  195.57 

6.2 Maturity Analysis of Lease Payments to be received in aggregate & each of following year:
Particulars As at 

31st March, 2025 
As at 

31st March, 2024 
Not later than one year  206.48 

 675.81 
 28.00 

6.3 Estimation of Fair Value

7. INTANGIBLE ASSETS Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars  Goodwill  Computer 
Software 

 Brand/
Patent 

 Total 

Gross Carrying Amount    
Balance as at 31st March, 2023
Addition  7 

 -   
Balance as at 31st March, 2024
Addition

 -   
Balance as at 31st March, 2025
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance as at 31st March, 2023
Addition  1,313 

Balance as at 31st March, 2024

Addition

Balance as at 31st March, 2025
Net Carrying Amount 
Balance as at 31st March, 2024  -   
Balance as at 31st March, 2025  -   
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).
Rs. in Lakhs

8. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING EQUITY METHOD 

Particulars  No. of 
Shares/Units 

 As at
 31st March, 2025 

 No. of 
 Shares/Units

 As at
 31st March, 2024 

Investments in Associates  
(Unquoted at Cost )

    

(a) Investment in Associate Company #  

Equity Shares 3,43,93,260  4,373.35 

 4,373.35 

#Particulars of Investment in 
Associate Company 

 

A)  

% of ownership interest 36.77%

Cost of Acquisition  3,999.60 

 374.43 

 4,374.03 

B)  

% of ownership interest 50.00%

Cost of Acquisition  0.50 

Surplus 
 (1.18)

 (0.68)

Total (A+B)  4,373.35 

9. NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS  

Particulars  As on 31st March, 2025  As on 31st March, 2024 

 Units/ 
Share (No.) 

 Amount 
(Rs.) 

 Units/ 
Share (No.) 

 Amount 
(Rs.) 

A) Investments in Mutual Funds (Unquoted)     

     

 i) - -

   -   

B) Investments in Equity Shares (Unquoted)     

     

 i)  31,525  35.00  31,525 

 Total (A+B)   35.01 

Aggregate amount of unquoted 
Investments

  35.01  

Aggregate amount of impairment in value 
of unquoted Investments

  -   - 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).

 
10. OTHER NON FINANCIAL CURRENT ASSETS  Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars  As at  
31st March, 2025 

 As at  
31st March, 2024 

 

 307.31 

(b) Other Advance  -   

various facilities)
 665.62 

TOTAL  972.93 

11. OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS

(a) Capital Advances  22.88 

 23.25 

 3.60 

(d)  Prepayment Lease Rent  7.61 

TOTAL  57.34 

12.  INVENTORIES 

(a) Raw Materials  45,625.61 

(b) Raw Materials -In transit  315.45 

(c) Stock-in-Progress  1,466.77 

(d) Finished Goods  10,108.57 

 1,256.12 

(f) Consumable Store  3,281.32 

TOTAL  62,053.84 

13. CURRENT INVESTMENT

Particulars  As at 31st March, 2025  As at 31st March, 2024 

 Shares (No)  Amount (Rs)  Shares (No)  Amount (Rs) 

A) Investment In Equity Instrument (Unquoted)  

  

 i)  31,792  -    31,792  -   

  -  - 

Aggregate Amount of Unquoted Investments   -   - 



79

BHARTIYA INTERNATIONAL LTD.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).

14. TRADE RECEIVABLES   Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars  As at  
31st March, 2025 

 As at  
31st March, 2024 

 18,921.21 

 (135.68)

TOTAL  18,785.53 

Trade receivable ageing schedule for the year ended as on 31st March, 2025

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 
6 Months

6 Months 
- 1 Year

1-2 Years 2-3 
Years

More than 
3 Years

 Total 

Considered Good

Considered Good
Total 15,673.58  1,310.48  811.36  177.08  948.71  18,921.21 

Trade receivable ageing schedule for the year ended as on 31st March, 2024

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 
6 Months

6 Months 
- 1 Year

1-2 
Years

2-3 
Years

More 
than 3 
Years

 Total 

Considered Good

Considered Good
Total 10,817.08  1,662.68 1,288.16  235.28  517.59 14,520.79 

15. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT

Particulars  As at  
31st March, 2025 

 As at  
31st March, 2024 

a) Balances with  Banks   

 In current accounts  1,059.31 

 In deposit accounts  124.68 

b) Cash on Hand  13.94 

TOTAL  1,197.93 

16. BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS 

 6,473.45 

 1.75 

TOTAL  6,475.20 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).

17. CURRENT LOAN  Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars  As at  
31st March, 2025 

 As at  
31st March, 2024 

  

(a) Loan to Employee  237.73 

TOTAL  237.73 

18. OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS 

 865.83 

 2,344.96 

c) Other Advance  -   

 366.56 

TOTAL  3,577.35 

19. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS 

a) Advances with Suppliers  2,642.15 

 325.21 

 2.73  -   

d) Mat Credit Entitlement  14.35 

e) Other Advances  37.49 

TOTAL  3,021.93 

20. SHARE CAPITAL   

Authorised Share Capital   

 a)   2,000.00 

 b)   500.00 

  2,500.00 

 Issued, Subscribed & Paid up : 

 a)  1,298.44 

TOTAL  1,298.44 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).

Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024

No. of 
Shares

Amount No. of 
Shares

Amount

Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year  1,22,09,411  1,220.94 1,22,07,129 

Shares Issued during the year  7,75,000  77.50 

Shares outstanding at the end of the year  1,29,84,411  1,298.44 

 Name of the Shareholders As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024

No. of 
Shares

 % of 
Holding

No. of 
Shares

 % of 
Holding

(a)  Snehdeep Aggarwal  11,43,362  8.81 

(b)  10,10,000  7.78  10,10,000 

(c)  30,47,100  23.47 

(d)  6,81,913  5.25 

(e)  7,06,474  5.44 

(f)  7,90,500  6.09  7,90,500 

(g)  7,75,000  5.97  -  -   

Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars 31st 
March 
2025

31st 
March 
2024

31st 
March 
2023

31st 
March 
2022

31st 
March 
2021

under the Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP) wherein part 

 -    -    500 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).

Rs. in Lakhs
 Share held by promoter at 31st March, 2025

Promoter Name No. of 
Shares at 
Beginning 

of the year

% of 
Total 

Shares

 No. of 
Shares         

at the end of 
the year

% of Total 
Shares

% Change 
during the 

year

Snehdeep Aggarwal

Ramesh Bhatia

Promoters Group

Arjun Aggarwal

Kanwal Aggarwal

50,000 50,000

Parushni Aggarwal 7,500 7,500

Pawan Aggarwal 5,000 5,000

10,10,000 10,10,000

30,000 30,000

7,75,000 7,75,000
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BHARTIYA INTERNATIONAL LTD.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).

22. NON-CURRENT BORROWINGS   Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars  As at 
31st March, 2025 

 As at 
31st March, 2024 

Secured   

 6,434.54 

 138.28 

TOTAL  6,572.82 

Nature of security and terms of repayment for long term secured borrowings:

Nature of Security Terms of Repayment

is secured by First Charge on the commercial property 
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Nature of security and terms of repayment for long term secured borrowings:

Nature of Security Terms of Repayment

end

 

undergone project and Cash Flows, receivables, book debts year end

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).

23. OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES    Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars  As at 
31st March, 2025 

 As at 
31st March, 2024 

 135.11 

TOTAL  135.11 

24. NON-CURRENT PROVISION 

 155.57 

TOTAL  155.57 

25. OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 

(a) Government Grant  39.24 

(b) Advance Lease Rent  31.83 

TOTAL  71.07 

26. CURRENT BORROWING

Secured   

   - Working Capital Loans From Banks  34,472.48 

   - Current Maturity of Long-term borrowing  6,400.23 

TOTAL  40,872.71 

27. TRADE PAYABLE

(a) Acceptances  4,902.66 

(b) Payable to Micro and Small Enterprises  1,399.07 

(c) Payable to others than Micro and Small Enterprises  13,872.21 

TOTAL  20,173.94 

Trade Payable ageing Schedule for the year ended as on 31st March, 2025

Particulars  Outstanding for following period from due date of 
payment 

Less than 
1 Years

 1-2 Years  2-3 Years  More 
than 3 
Years 

 Total 

 -   

 Others  -   

20,173.94  -    -    -   20,173.94 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).

Rs. in Lakhs
Trade Payable ageing Schedule for the year ended as on 31st March, 2024

Particulars Outstanding for following period from due date of payment

Less than 
1 Years

 1-2 Years  2-3 Years  More 
than 3 
Years 

 Total 

Others  -    -    -   

Total Trade Payable 15,563.89  -    -    -    15,563.89 

28. OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES    

Particulars  As at 
31st March, 2025 

 As at 
31st March, 2024 

(a) Interest Accrued  122.06 

 1.75 

 484.45 

 394.59 

 320.03 

(f) Capital Payables  -   

(g) Other Payable  19.65 

 652.58 

TOTAL  1,995.11 

29. PROVISIONS

 186.89 

TOTAL  186.89 

30. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

(a) Advance from Customer  312.47 

(a) Advance Lease Rent  10.80 

TOTAL  323.27 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).

Rs. in Lakhs
31. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Particulars  Year Ended  
31st March, 2025 

 Year Ended  
31st March, 2024 

Sales of Products   

(a) Sales Manufactured Goods  79,012.09 

(b)  20,468.31 

Sales of Services  749.68 

Other Operating Revenues  

(a)  2,941.98 

(b)  (245.79)

TOTAL  1,02,926.27 

31.1 

Revenue as per contracted price  1,00,275.90 

 45.82 

Total Revenue from contract with customers  1,00,230.08 

32. OTHER INCOME    

 - Rental Income  251.78 

 -   

 - Other Income  81.63 

 - Bad debt Recovered  110.36 

TOTAL  443.77 

33. COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED  

Opening Stock  43,582.99 

 47,908.82 

  91,491.81 

 49,222.38 

MATERIALS CONSUMED  42,269.43 

34. CHANGE IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS AND WORK IN PROGRESS

(a) Opening Inventories

  - Finished Goods  11,328.97 

  - Work in Progress  1,291.04 

(b) Closing Inventories 

 - Finished Goods  10,108.57 

 - Work in Progress  1,466.77 

Decrease/(Increase)  1,044.67 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).

35. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES   Rs. in Lakhs 

Particulars  Year Ended   
31st March, 2025 

 Year Ended   
31st March, 2024 

 6,074.56 

 415.97 

 406.48 

TOTAL  6,897.01 

36. FINANCE COST

 4,138.45 

(b) Borrowing Cost  281.93 

(c) Interest on Lease Liability  45.97 

 72.66 

TOTAL  4,539.01 

37. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION 

 1,091.19 

(b) Amortisation on Intangible Assets  1,331.54 

 10.91 

(d) Amortisation on Right of use Assets  141.74 

TOTAL  2,575.38 

38. OTHER EXPENSES   

(I) Manufacturing Expenses   

(a) Fabrication Charges  14,815.30 

 679.25 

 95.68 

   

(II) Selling & Administrative Expenses   

(a) Legal And Professional Charges  1,779.86 

 494.49 

(c) Bank Charges  1,069.59 

 - Building  72.03 

 286.68 

 - Others  851.16 
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Particulars  Year Ended   
31st March, 2025 

 Year Ended   
31st March, 2024 

(e) Communication  87.18 

 53.99 

(g) Insurance  323.41 

(h) Rent  276.94 

 1,296.33 

 1,928.96 

 373.35 

 12.87 

 761.74 

 36.14 

 11.34 

 335.49 

 347.80 

(r) Auditors Remuneration  62.27 

TOTAL  26,051.85 

39. TAX EXPENSES

I) Current Tax   

 947.76 

  947.76 

II) Deferred Tax   

 (15.57)

 932.19 

37.36%

 A reconciliation of the income tax expenses to the amount computed by applying the statutory 

 2,494.85 

Statutory income tax rate 25.168%

 627.90 

 116.03 

 206.99 

 (31.02)

 (15.51)

 27.80 

 932.19 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).

Rs. in Lakhs
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).

40.  CONTINGENT LIABILITIES   Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars  As at  
31st March, 2025 

 As at  
31st March, 2024 

i) Letter of Credit / Import Bills  outstanding  -  2,445.18 

ii)  827.66 

iii) Standby Letter of credit (SBLC) issued by company  bankers   
in favour of the bankers of its subsidiaries 

 6,285.37 

iv) Corporate Guarantee given by the company to a bank  
against facilities granted by that bank to its wholly owned 

 138.38 

v)  -   

vi) 186.50

vii) 301.81

41. CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS 

 i) 
capital Account and not provided for 

2,353.62

 ii)
capital account 

13.80

42. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS PLANS     

Particulars Year Ended 
31st March, 2025

Year Ended 
31st March, 2024

contribution plans is given below:
  

a) Provident Fund*  277.85 

b) Employees State lnsurance Corporation  7.63 

i) The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows:

Principal Assumptions Gratuity

As at  
March 31, 2025

As at  
March 31, 2024

6.60%

6.55%-6.60%

Salary increase rate 5.00%

Employee turnover 5.00%

In service mortality IALM (2012-14)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).

are as follows:                                                                                  
               Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars Gratuity

Year Ended 
31st March, 2025

Year Ended 
31st March, 2024

Current Service Cost  87.37 

 6.32 

Past Service Cost  -    -   

 93.69 

Actuarial (gains)/ losses on obligation for the year  58.67 

Return On Plan Assets  (13.65)

Net(Income)/Expenses for the year ended  45.02 

iii) The amount included in the Balance Sheet arising from the entity’s obligation in respect of 

Particulars Gratuity

As at  
31st March, 2025

As at  
31st March, 2024

 671.39 

 (581.48)

Obligation
 89.91 

Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars Gratuity

For the Year Ended 
31st March, 2025

For the Year Ended 
31st March, 2024

 603.90 

Interest Cost  6.32 

Current Service Cost  87.37 

Past Service Cost  -    -   

 (84.87)

Actuarial (gains)/ Losses  58.67 

 671.39 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).

v) Movements in the fair value of the plan assets are as follows:  Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars Gratuity

For the Year Ended 
31st March, 2025

For the Year Ended 
31st March, 2024

 534.01 

Interest Income  33.82 

Contribution by the Employer  -    -   

 13.65 

 581.48 

* Fund Managed by the approved Insurance Company Kotak Life Insurance

Particulars Gratuity

For the Year Ended 
31st March, 2025

For the Year Ended 
31st March, 2024

Investment With Insurer 100.00%

Sensitivity Analysis

Particulars Increase Effect Decrease Effect

Effect of Increase/decrease in discount rate  

Effect of Increase/decrease in salary escalation  

Particulars Increase Effect Decrease Effect

Effect of Increase/decrease in discount rate  

Effect of Increase/decrease in salary escalation  

43. EARNING PER SHARE     

Particulars Year Ended 
31st March, 2025

Year Ended 
31st March, 2024

 1,562.66 

No. of share at the beginning of the year (A)  1,22,09,411  1,22,07,129 

Equity allotted during the year  7,75,000 

Weighted average shares (B)  27,603 

 1,22,37,014 

Effect of diluted number of share 

 2,91,091  -   

Weighted average number of equity share for diluted earning per share  1,25,28,105 

Basic earning per share  12.77 

 12.47 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).

44. EXPORT PROMOTION CAPITAL GOODS (EPCG)

imported under EPCG scheme being Government Grant, is accounted as stated in the Accounting policy on Government 

45. EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION PLAN

 Rs. in Lakhs

Grant Date April 5, 2018

April 05, 2019 April 05, 2020 April 05, 2021 April 05, 2022

%age of vesting

Grant Date February 03, 2018

February 03, 2019 February 03, 2020 February 03, 2021 February 03, 2022

%age of vesting

Grant Date December 31, 2015

%age of vesting

 

Grant Date September 16, 2015

%age of vesting
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).

Rs. in Lakhs

Grant Date January 28, 2014

1st February, 2015 1st March, 2015

%age of vesting

Particulars Year Ended 
31st March, 2025

Year Ended 
31st March, 2024

Number of options outstanding at the beginning of the period  -    20,751 

Number of options granted during the year  -    -   

Number of options forfeited / lapsed during the year  -   

Number of options vested during the year  -    -   

 -   

 -   

directly by the company
 -   

NA NA

Number of options outstanding at the end of the year  -    -   

 -    -   

-

Date of Grant September 16, 2015 December 31, 2015 February 3, 2018 April 5, 2018
Weighted average share price

Option life (comprising of 
weighted average of vesting 

7 years 7 years

Risk free rate of return

46. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT   

 The following methods and assumptions were used to Estimate the Fair Values:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).

instruments by valuation techniques.

-
tions that are neither supported by prices from observable current market transactions in the same instrument nor are they 

Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars As at 31st March, 2025

Carrying 
Amount 

Level of input used in

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial Assets     

At Amortised Cost     

 18,785.53  -    -   18,785.53 

 1,197.93  -    -    1,197.93 

Other bank balance  6,475.20  -    -    6,475.20 

Loans  237.73  -    -    237.73 

 4,550.28  -    -    4,550.28 

At FVTPL

Investments  35.00  -    -    35.00 

Financial Liabilities

At Amortised Cost

Borrowings  47,445.53  -    -   47,445.53 

Lease Liability  456.55 

 20,173.94  -    -    
20,173.94 

 1,477.64  -    -    1,477.64 

At FVTPL

 652.58  -    652.58  -   
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).

Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars As at 31st March, 2024

Carrying 
Amount 

Level of input used in

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial Assets     
At Amortised Cost     

 -    -   
 -    -   

Other bank balance  -    -   
Loans  -    -   

 -    -   
At FVTPL
Investments
Financial Liabilities
At Amortised Cost
Borrowings  -    -   

 -    -   
Lease Liability

 -    -   
At FVTPL

 -    -   
47. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

 For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all 

Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2025

As at 
31st March, 2024

Borrowings (long-term and short-term, including current maturities of  47,445.53 

 (1,197.93)
Net Debt  46,247.60 
Equity Share Capital  1,298.44 
Other Equity  43,556.92 
Total Capital  44,855.36 
Capital and Net Debt  91,102.96 
Gearing Ratio 50.76%

 “In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it 

 No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31, 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).

48. DISCLOSURES AS REQUIRED UNDER SCHEDULE III TO THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013, OF THE ENTERPRISES 
CONSOLIDATED AS SUBSIDIARY/ASSOCIATES :                                                                Rs. in Lakhs

Name of the Entities Net Assets i.e. Total Assets 
minus Total Liabilities

As a % of 
Consolidated 

net assets

Amount As a % of 
Consolidated 

Amount

Parent :
Subsidiary :
Indian Subsidiaries  -   
Bhartiya Global Marketing Ltd

Bhartiya International Sez Ltd
Bhartiya Fashion Retail Ltd 

Foreign Subsidiaries
 -   

Sub Total
Inter-company Elimination & Consolidation 
Adjustments
Grand Total
Non-Controlling Interest in subsidiaries

49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 

 

 Credit Risk

 Financial instruments that are subject to concentrations of credit risk, principally consist of balance with banks, invest-
-

Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2025

As at 
31st March, 2024

15,673.58

 3,111.95 

Liquidity Risk
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Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars As at 31st March, 2025

0-1 year 1-5 year Beyond  
5 year

Total

Borrowing (Including current maturity of long term 
borrowing)

 40,872.71  5,488.52  1,084.30  47,445.53 

 20,173.94 - -  20,173.94 

Lease Liabilities  125.46  296.12  34.97  456.55 

Other Financial Liabilities  2,130.22 - -  2,130.22 

Particulars As at 31st March, 2024

0-1 year 1-5 year Beyond  
5 year

Total

borrowing)
 -   

- -

Lease Liabilities

Other Financial Liabilities  -    -   

Market Risk 

Interest Rate Risk

Exposure to Interest Rate Risk   Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2025

As at 
31st March, 2024

 47,445.53 

% of Borrowings out of above bearing variable rate of interest 94.11%

Interest Rate Sensitivity

 446.53 

 446.53 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).

Foreign Currency Risk Management  

Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024

Foreign Currency 
Monetary Assets

Foreign Currency 
Monetary Liabilities

Foreign Currency 
Monetary Assets

 Foreign Currency 
Monetary Liabilities 

 107.57  500.83 

 21.64  31.37 

GBP  34.98  0.99 

 302.32  68.63 

RMB  24.99  12.35 

CHF  92.95  31.28 

 Foreign Currency Sensitivity

currencies, which is used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management personnel and represents 

Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024

5% Weakened 5% Strengthen 5% Weakened 5% Strengthen

Foreign Currency Monetary Assets     

 459.51  (459.51)

 99.80  (99.80)

GBP  193.05  (193.05)

 166.01  (166.01)

RMB  14.70  (14.70)

CHF  449.25  (449.25)

Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024

5% Weakened 5% Strengthen 5% Weakened 5% Strengthen

Foreign Currency Monetary Liabilities  

 (2,139.42)  2,139.42 

 (144.68)  144.68 

GBP  (5.46)  5.46 

 (37.69)  37.69 

RMB  (7.26)  7.26 

CHF  (151.18)  151.18 

end of reporting year
 (1,103.37)  1,103.37 
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 Disclosure Regarding Derivative Instruments.

Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024

Currency Foreign 
Currency Lacs

Currency Foreign 
Currency Lacs

Forwards Contracts USD 144.80

EURO 40.54

GBP  -   GBP  -   

50. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES AS PER IND AS 24

a) Name of Related Parties & Nature of Relationship:  Country  Ownership Interest 

i) Associate parties :

 India 

 India 50%

ii) Executive Directors:

Manoj Khattar

Amrishpal Singh

Nikhil Aggarwal

Walter willi Zwahlen

iii) Non-Executive Directors

Snehdeep Aggarwal

Navkiran Singh Ghei

Sannovanda Machaiah Swathi

Mukul Harmilap

iv) 
Executive Directors or their relatives :

v) Trust

Bhartiya International Limited Employees Group Gratuity 
Scheme Plan
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).
Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars  2024-25  2023-24 

b) Transactions during the year with related parties :

1. Other Income

 0.13 

 2. Salaries

Manoj Khattar  89.67 

Amrishpal Singh  3.00 

Nikhil Aggarwal 41.94

Walter willi Zwahlen 53.77

 3. Lease Rent Received

 18.00 

 4. Other Expenses

 - 

 5. Legal and Professional Fees

 0.60 

 105.84 

Snehdeep Aggarwal  9.00 

Mukul Harmilapi  10.92 

 6. Sitting Fee

SM Swati  2.61 

Navkiran Singh Ghei  2.61 

 1.39 

 2.61 

 7.  CSR Expenses

Chaman Bhartiya Foundation  15.00  - 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).

Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars  2024-25  2023-24 

 c)  Balances Outstanding at the year end: 

1. Trade Receivable

 - 

2. Expenses/Others Payables

Amrishpal singh  0.23 

 9.87  - 

Snehdeep Aggarwal  0.68 

3. Security Deposit (Received)

 1.50 

As per our report of even date attached
For SUSHIL PODDAR & CO. For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants

Ambrish Rastogi Yogesh Kumar Gautam Raj Kumar Chawla Manoj Khattar Vivek Kapur

Gurugram, 29th May, 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
The Members of 
Bhartiya International Limited
Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

Bhartiya International Limited (‘the 
Company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st

st

Basis for Opinion

Key Audit Matter

Key Audit Matters Auditor’s Response

Revenue Recognition: Principal audit procedures performed:

the year-end

transactions recorded during the year which included sales 

sales transactions recorded during the period closer to the year 
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Information Other than the Financial Statement and Auditor’s Report Thereon

In 

Responsibilities of Management and Those charged with Governanc e for the Standalone Financial 
Statements 

In 

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of Standalone Financial Statements
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regarding independence and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

st

st
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otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities 

(b) 

understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall directly or indirectly, lend 

circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under 

for Sushil Poddar & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Ambrish Rastogi
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ANNEXURE - A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

st 

(b) 

(c) 

Description 
of Property

Gross carrying 
value

Held in the 
name of

Whether 
promoter, 
director of 

their relative of 
employee

Period held Reason for 
not being held 

in name of 
company

(d) 

(e) 

II  (a)  

(b)  

III 

        
 Aggregate amount of guarantee provided during the year

 Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date – 31 March, 2025
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IV 

V 

VI 

Nature of the 
statute

Nature of dues Forum where 
Dispute is Pending

Period to which 
the Amount 
Relates 

Amount in Rs.

Commissioner level

VIII 
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standalone 

XIV a)  

XV 

XVI 
 

any CICs

XVII 

XVIII 

XIX 

the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material 
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XX (a)  

for Sushil Poddar & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Ambrish Rastogi



113

BHARTIYA INTERNATIONAL LTD.

ANNEXURE - B TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

Bhartiya International Limited”
st 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

Opinion 

for Sushil Poddar & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Ambrish Rastogi
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STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2025
Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars Note 
No.

 As at  
31st March, 2025 

 As at  
31st March, 2024 

I Assets     
 1 Non - Current Assets    
 (a)  11,913.55 
 (b)  240.14 
 (c)  654.48 
 (d)  491.76 
 (e)  57.07 
 7  6,576.09 
 (g)    
 (i) Investments  - 
 (ii) 9  891.16 
 (h)  49.71 
 2 Current Assets    
 (a) Inventories 11  60,453.63 
 (b)    
 (i) Investments  -  - 
 (ii) 13  13,837.49 
 (iii)  225.21 
 (iv)  6,475.20 

 (v)  652.06 
 (vi) 17  2,949.47 
 (c)   125.54 
 (d)  2,574.12 
  TOTAL ASSETS   1,08,166.68 
II Equity and Liabilities    
 1 Equity     
 (a) 19  1,298.44 
 (b)  38,295.51 
 2 Liabilities    
    
 (a)    
 (i) Borrowings  6,528.29 
 (ii)   197.35 
 (ii)  118.65 
 (b)  69.70 
 (b)  71.07 
 (c)  794.28 
 3 Current Liabilities    
 (a)    
 (i) Borrowings  39,315.76 
 (ii)   98.70 
 (iii)   
 

small enterprises
  1,185.45 

 
micro enterprises and small enterprises

  17,314.48 

 (iv)  1,763.36 
 (b)  143.84 
 (c)  323.27 
 (d)   648.53 
  TOTAL OF EQUITY AND LIABILITIES   1,08,166.68 

 

For SUSHIL PODDAR & CO. For and on behalf of the Board

Ambrish Rastogi Yogesh Kumar Gautam Raj Kumar Chawla Manoj Khattar Vivek Kapur
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STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2025

Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars Note 
No.

 Year Ended  
31st March, 2025 

 Year Ended  
31st March, 2024 

INCOME    

31  85,656.58 

Other Income  396.77 

Total Income   86,053.35 

EXPENSES    

33  43,938.74 

  3,602.84 

 990.01 

 5,552.63 

Finance Costs  4,352.70 

37  1,056.68 

 23,561.63 

Total Expenses   83,055.23 

  2,998.12 

Tax expenses 39   

i   925.54 

ii   (42.65)

  2,115.23 

Other Comprehensive Income    

   

  (28.73)

  7.23 

Total Other Comprehensive Income for the Year (B)   (21.50)

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year (A+B)   2,093.73 

Earnings per equity share of face value    

  17.29 

  16.88 

statements
  

For SUSHIL PODDAR & CO. For and on behalf of the Board

Ambrish Rastogi Yogesh Kumar Gautam Raj Kumar Chawla Manoj Khattar Vivek Kapur
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STANDALONE  STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2025

A  Equity Share Capital Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars Notes Amount

B  Other Equity (Refer Note 20)

Particulars Preferential 
share 

warrant 
pending 

for share 
allotment

 Employee 
Stock 

Options 
Outstanding  

Reserves and Surplus Total

 Preferential 
Share 

Warrant  
Forfeited 

Securities 
Premium  

 General 
Reserve  

 Retained 
Earnings 

 Other 
Comprehensive 

Balance as at 31st March, 2023  -    89.43  925.75  7,859.24 3,517.36 18,305.49  24.68 30,721.95 

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -   

Balance as at 31st March, 2024  -    -    925.75 7,869.99 3,596.95 20,064.09  32.04 32,488.82 

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

Balance as at 31st March, 2025  457.96  -    925.75 11,124.99 3,596.95 22,179.32  10.54 38,295.51 

For SUSHIL PODDAR & CO. For and on behalf of the Board

Ambrish Rastogi Yogesh Kumar Gautam Raj Kumar Chawla Manoj Khattar Vivek Kapur
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STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2025

Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars  Year Ended 
31st March, 2025 

 Year Ended 
31st March, 2024 

A. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

 2,998.12 

Adjustment for :

Finance Cost  4,352.70 

 1,056.68 

 12.87 

 (251.78)

 (4.44)

 8,164.15 

Movements in working capital:

 4,461.71 

 550.07 

 (46.14)

 1.15 

 (4,694.19)

 (3,519.26)

 350.91 

 (317.53)

 (260.73)

 2.87 

 (3.15)

 4,689.86 

 (549.97)

 4,139.89 

B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

 (611.48)

 - 

 3.07 

 0.01  - 

Security deposit  (1.01)

 251.78 

 (904.05)

 (1,261.68)
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Particulars  Year Ended 
31st March, 2025 

 Year Ended 
31st March, 2024 

C. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

 (1,928.35)

 (614.14)

 (130.75)

Share warrant money received  457.95  - 

Share Capital including securities premium  3,332.50 

 (4,322.54)

 (3,205.33)

(A+B+C)
 (327.12)

 552.33 

Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year  225.21 

Components of cash and cash equivalents:

Cash on hand  5.54 

In current accounts  219.67 

 -  - 

 225.21 

For SUSHIL PODDAR & CO. For and on behalf of the Board

Ambrish Rastogi Yogesh Kumar Gautam Raj Kumar Chawla Manoj Khattar Vivek Kapur

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2025

Rs. in Lakhs
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 CORPORATE INFORMATION

BASIS OF PREPARATION

3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1 Property, Plant and Equipment

3.2 Investment Properties

3.3 Intangible Assets

 Computer Software

 Amortisation Method and Useful Life

3.4 Lease

 Company as a Lessee
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

(i)  Right-of-use Assets (ROU Assets)

(ii)  Lease Liabilities

incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is 

 

(iii)  Short-term Leases and Leases of Low-Value Assets

 Company as a Lessor

3.5 Investment In Subsidiaries And Associates

3.6 Inventories
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

3.7 Cash & Cash Equivalents

 

 

3.9 Financial Instruments 

 Financial Assets

 Debt Instruments

(a)  Measured at Amortised Cost:

(b)  Measured at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income: 
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

 Equity Instruments:

 Derecognition

 Financial Liabilities

 Initial recognition and Measurement

 Subsequent Measurement

 Loans and Borrowings

 Trade and Other Payable

 Derecognition

 Derivative Instruments

3.10 Provision and Contingent Liabilities
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

3.11 Revenue Recognition

 Revenue from Services

 Other operating Revenue - Export Incentives

 Interest Income

 Dividend Income

3.12 Foreign Currency Translation

 Transactions and Balances

3.13 Income Tax

 Current Tax

 Deferred Tax
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

3.14 Earning Per Share 

3.15 Borrowing Cost

3.16 Government Grants

3.17 Share Based Payment

3.18 Critical Estimates and Judgements

 The Areas involving Critical Estimates or Judgement are:
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT  Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars Freehold 

Land
Buildings Plant and 

Equipment
Furniture 

and 
Fixtures

Vehicles
Equipment

Computer 
Equipment 

Total

Gross Carrying Amount         

Balance as at 31st March, 2023

Balance as at 31st March, 2024  223.25  7,752.87  7,919.58  505.08  297.37  449.69  368.91 17,516.75 

Balance as at 31st March, 2025  223.25  7,752.87  8,162.83  543.16  324.09  485.12  144.15 17,635.47 

Accumulated Depreciation

 -   

Balance as at 31st March, 2024  -    1,296.65  2,936.29  268.52  73.40  289.63  275.82  5,140.31 

Balance as at 31st March, 2025  -    1,541.97  3,391.74  307.38  99.69  330.60  50.54  5,721.92 

Net carrying amount 

Balance as at 31st March, 2024

Balance as at 31st March, 2025  223.25  6,210.90  4,771.09  235.78  224.40  154.52  93.61 11,913.55 

a)   Title deeds of Immovable Properties not held in name of the Company 

Relevant line 
item in the 

Balance Sheet

Description 
of item of 
Property

Gross 
Carrying 

Value

Title deeds 
held in the 
Name of

Whether title deed 
holder is a promoter 

or director or 
Relative of Promoter 

Director

Property 
held since 

which 
date

Reason for 
not being 
held in the 

name of the 
company

Building

4.1 Capital Work in Progress 

Balance as at 31st March, 2024

Capitalised during the year
Balance as at 31st March, 2025  240.14 

4.1.1 Ageing of Capital Work-in-Progress ageing 

Amount in CWIP for a period of

Less than 1 
Year

1-2 Year 2-3 Year More than 3 
Year

Total

31 March, 2025      

 -    -    -    240.14 

31 March, 2024

 -    -    -    129.06 
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

4.2 RIGHT OF USE ASSETS Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars Land Building Total
Gross Carrying amount 

 -   -  -   
-  -    -   

 -   -  -   
- -  -   

Balance as at 31st March, 2025  532.34  740.80  1,273.14 

 -    -    -   

 -   
Balance as at 31st March, 2025  75.83  542.83  618.66 

Balance as at 31st March, 2025  456.51  197.97  654.48 

5. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Particulars Buildings Total
Gross Carrying Amount 
Balance as at 31st March, 2023

- -
- -

Balance as at 31st March, 2024  589.92  589.92 
- -
- -

Balance as at 31st March, 2025  589.92  589.92 
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance as at 31st March, 2023

- -
Balance as at 31st March, 2024  87.25  87.25 

- -
Balance as at 31st March, 2025  98.16  98.16 
Net Carrying Amount 
Balance as at 31st March, 2024
Balance as at 31st March, 2025  491.76  491.76 
Fair Value 
As at 31st March, 2024
As at 31st March , 2025 3,358.30 3,358.30
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)
Rs. in Lakhs

5.1 Particulars  Year Ended  
31st March, 2025 

 Year Ended  
31st March, 2024 

 205.48 

generating rental income
 7.38 

Income arising from investment properties before 
depreciation

 212.86 

 10.91 
Income from investment properties (Net)  201.95 

5.2 Maturity Analysis of Lease Payments to be received in aggregate & each of following year:
Particulars As at 

31st March, 2025 
As at 

31st March, 2024 
 205.48 
 671.81 

 -    -   
5.3 Estimation of Fair Value

6. INTANGIBLE ASSETS Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars Computer 
Software

Total

Gross Carrying Amount 

Balance as at 31st March, 2023

 -    -   

Balance as at 31st March, 2024  360.13 

 -    -   

Balance as at 31st March, 2025  396.68 

Accumulated Depreciation

Balance as at 31st March, 2023

Balance as at 31st March, 2024  321.11 

 -   

Balance as at 31st March, 2025  339.61 

Net Carrying Amount 

Balance as at 31st March, 2024

Balance as at 31st March, 2025  57.07 
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

7. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDARIES AND ASSOCIATES   Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars  As at 31st March, 2025  As at 31st March, 2024 

Shares(Nos)  Amount Shares(Nos)  Amount 

A INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES     

 i.   Equity Instrument at Cost (Unquoted)     

  1  49,99,020  499.90 

 1,20,69,230 1,206.92 

  3  5,00,000  50.00 

  50,000  5.00 

  1,000  337.86 

 

  7,09,000  478.14 

     

 Total (A)  2,577.82 

 B  INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES     

 i. Equity Instrument at Cost (Unquoted)     

  1 3,43,93,260 3,999.60 

   5,000  0.50 

  Total (B) 4,000.10 

  Total (A+B)  6,577.92 

 Aggregate amount of unquoted Investments 
before impairment

 6,577.92 

 Less: Provision for diminution in value of 
investment 

  1.83 

 Aggregate amount of unquoted Investments 
after impairment

6,576.09 

8. NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS 

Particulars  As at 31st March, 2025  As at 31st March, 2024 

 Units(No.)  Amount  Units(No.)  Amount 

 Investments in Mutual Funds (Unquoted)     

     

 i)  -    -   

 TOTAL   -   

Aggregate amount of unquoted Investments   -   

Aggregate amount of impairment in Value of 
unquoted Investments

  -    -   
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

9. OTHER NON CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS    Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars  As at  
31st March, 2025 

 As at  
31st March, 2024 

 

 225.54 

  665.62 

TOTAL  891.16 

10. OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS

 22.88 

 22.15 

 4.68 

TOTAL  49.71 

11. INVENTORIES

 45,406.77 

 315.45 

 1,466.77 

 9,985.31 

(e) Consumable Store  3,279.33 

TOTAL  60,453.63 

12. CURRENT INVESTMENTS 

Particulars  As at 31st March, 2025  As at 31st March, 2024 

 Shares (No) Amount  Shares (No) Amount 

a) Investment In Equity Instrument (Unquoted)     

  

 i)  31,792  -    -   

 Total - -

Aggregate amount of unquoted Investments   -   - 
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

13. TRADE RECEIVABLES   Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars  As at  
31st March, 2025 

 As at  
31st March, 2024 

(Unsecured, considered good)  
 11,956.40 

(refer no. 54)  2,016.77 
 (135.68)

TOTAL  13,837.49 

Trade receivable ageing schedule for the year ended as on 31st March, 2025

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Not due Less than 

6 Months
6 Months 
- 1 Year

1-2 
Years

2-3 
Years

More 
than 3 
Years

 Total 

Impaired

Total 8,461.62  4,334.35  367.78  138.51  177.06  493.85  13,973.17 

Trade receiable ageing schedule for the year ended as on 31st March, 2024

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Not due Less than 
6 Months

6 Months 
- 1 Year

1-2 
Years

2-3 
Years

More 
than 3 
Years

 Total 

 -   

Impaired

Total 5,779.77  4,026.65  75.96  111.00  5.34  455.19  10,453.91 

14. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT

a) Balances with Banks   

       In current accounts  219.67 

 5.54 

TOTAL  225.21 

15. BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS

 6,473.45 

 1.75 

TOTAL  6,475.20 
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

16. CURRENT LOAN   Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars  As at  
31st March, 2025 

 As at  
31st March, 2024 

(Unsecured & Considered Good)   

 558.17 

(refer note no. 54)

 93.89 

TOTAL  652.06 

17. OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS 

 865.83 

 2,060.23 

 23.41 

TOTAL  2,949.47 

18. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

 2,269.81 

 304.28 

 -   

 0.03 

 TOTAL  2,574.12 
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

19. SHARE CAPITAL  Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars  As at  
31st March, 2025 

 As at  
31st March, 2024 

Authorised Share Capital   

 a)   2,000.00 

 b)   500.00 

  2,500.00 

 Issued, Subscribed & Paid Up :   

 a)   1,298.44 

TOTAL  1,298.44 

 

Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024

 No. of Shares Amount  No. of Shares Amount

 1,22,09,411  1,220.94 

Shares Issued during the year  7,75,000  77.50 

 1,29,84,411  1,298.44 

 

Name of the Shareholders As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024

No. of 
Shares

% of 
Holding

No. of 
Shares

% of 
Holding

 (a)  11,43,362  8.81 

 (b)  10,10,000  7.78 

 (c)  30,47,100  23.47 

 (e)  6,81,913  5.25 

 7,06,474  5.44 

 (g)  7,90,500  6.09 

 (h)  7,75,000  5.97  -  -   
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

Rs. in Lakhs
 

Particulars 31st 
March, 

2025

31st 
March, 

2024

31st 
March, 

2023

31st 
March, 

2022

31st 
March, 

2021

 -    -   

Promoter Name No. of 
Shares at 

Beginning of 
the year

% of Total 
Shares

 No. of 
Shares         

at the end of 
the year

% of Total 
Shares

% Change 
during the 

year

Promoters Group
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

21. NON-CURRENT BORROWINGS  Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars  As at 
31st March, 2025 

 As at 
31st March, 2024 

Secured   

 6,396.59 

 131.70 

TOTAL  6,528.29 

Nature of security and terms of repayment for long term secured borrowings:

Nature of Security Terms of Repayment
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Nature of security and terms of repayment for long term secured borrowings:

Nature of Security Terms of Repayment

22. OTHER NON CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES  Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars  As at  
31st March, 2025 

 As at  
31st March, 2024 

 118.65 

TOTAL  118.65 

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

23. NON-CURRENT PROVISION   Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars  As at  
31st March, 2025 

 As at  
31st March, 2024 

 69.70 

TOTAL  69.70 

24. OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITY   

 39.24 

 31.83 

TOTAL  71.07 

Deferred Tax Liabilities   

 1,007.30 

 (4.75)

Deferred Tax Assets

 (34.15)

 (174.12)

TOTAL  794.28 

26. CURRENT BORROWING

Secured   

 34,265.64 

 5,050.12 

TOTAL  39,315.76 

27. TRADE PAYABLE  

(a)  4,902.66 

 10,931.68 

 1,480.14 

(refer note no 54)

 1,185.45 

TOTAL  18,499.93 
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

Due to Micro and Small Enterprises

Particulars  As at  
31st March, 2025 

 As at  
31st March, 2024 

 1,185.45 

 -  - 

to the supplier beyond the appointed day during the year

 -  - 

making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed 
 -  - 

each accounting year
 73.04 

the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues above are 
 -  - 

Trade Payable ageing Schedule for the year ended as on 31st March, 2025

 Particulars  Outstanding for following period from due date of payment 

 Less than 1 
Years 

 1-2 Years  2-3 Years  More than 
3 Years 

 Total 

   - 

 Others  - 

 17,800.43  385.11  -  314.39  18,499.93 

Trade Payable ageing Schedule for the year ended as on 31st March, 2024

Particulars Outstanding for following period from due date of payment

Less than 1 
Years

 1-2 Years  2-3 Years More than 
3 Years

 Total 

   

Others   

Total Trade Payable  13,591.40  -  -  446.82  14,038.22 
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

28. OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES   Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars  As at  
31st March, 2025 

 As at  
31st March, 2024 

(a)  122.06 

(b)  1.75 

(c)  416.94 

(d)  287.98 

(e)  282.05 

 -   

(g)  652.58 

TOTAL  1,763.36 

29. PROVISIONS

 143.84 

TOTAL  143.84 

30. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

 312.47 

 10.80 

TOTAL  323.27 

31. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Particulars  Year Ended 
31st March, 2025

 Year Ended  
31st March, 2024 

Sales of Products   

(a)  79,012.09 

(b) Stock-in-trade  3,645.66 

Other Operating Revenues 

(a)  2,941.98 

(b)  56.85 

TOTAL  85,656.58 
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)
Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars  Year Ended 
31st March, 2025

 Year Ended  
31st March, 2024 

 82,703.57 

 45.82 

Total Revenue from Contract with Customers  82,657.75 

Revenue by Location of Customers

India  5,861.33 

Outside India  76,796.42 

Total Revenue from Contract with Customers  82,657.75 

32. OTHER INCOME

 251.78 

 - Other Income  144.99 

TOTAL  396.77 

33. COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED

Opening Stock  43,317.35 

 49,622.94 

  92,940.29 

 49,001.55 

 MATERIALS CONSUMED  43,938.74 

34. CHANGE IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS AND WORK IN PROGRESS

(a) Opening Inventories 

 11,151.05 

  -Work in progress  1,291.04 

(b) Closing Inventories 

 9,985.31 

  -Work in progress  1,466.77 

 990.01 
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

35. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES   Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars  Year Ended 
31st March, 2025

 Year Ended 
31st March, 2024

 4,900.26 

 300.58 

 351.79 

TOTAL  5,552.63 

36. FINANCE COST

 3,967.95 

(b) Borrowing Cost  281.93 

 30.16 

 72.66 

TOTAL  4,352.70 

37. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION

 910.80 

 18.50 

 10.91 

 116.47 

TOTAL  1,056.68 
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

38. OTHER EXPENSES   Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars  Year Ended  
31st March, 2025 

 Year Ended  
31st March, 2024 

(I) Manufacturing Expenses   

(a) Fabrication Charges  13,969.07 

 628.85 

 95.68 

   

(II) Selling & Administrative Expenses   

 1,122.83 

 294.64 

(c) Bank Charges  1,050.02 

     - Building  72.03 

 233.93 

     - Others  785.63 

(e) Communication  71.41 

 21.71 

(g) Insurance  258.60 

 156.42 

 1,119.71 

 1,644.18 

 944.80 

 12.87 

491.68

36.14

 9.22 

 335.49 

 206.72 

TOTAL  23,561.63 
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

39. TAX EXPENSES   Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars  Year Ended  
31st March, 2025 

 Year Ended  
31st March, 2024 

I) Current Tax   

 925.54 

II) Deferred Tax   

 (42.65)

and loss
 882.89 

29.45%

 2,998.12

Statutory income tax rate (%)  25.17 

 754.57 

 116.03 

 (15.51)

 27.80 

account
 882.89 

40. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 

Particulars  As at  
31st March, 2025 

 As at  
31st March, 2024 

i)  2,445.18 

ii)  827.66 

iii) 

 6,285.37 

iv)  138.38 

 v)  -   

 vi) 186.50

 vii) 301.81
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

41. CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS   Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars  As at  
31st March, 2025

 As at  
31st March, 2024

 i) 2,353.62

 ii)
capital account  

13.80

42. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS PLANS   

Particulars For the Year Ended 
31st March, 2025

For the Year Ended 
31st March, 2024

contribution plans is given below:
  

 248.34 

 6.78 

i) The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows:

Principal Assumptions Gratuity

As at  
31st March, 2025

As at  
31st March, 2024

6.60%

6.60%

Salary increase rate 5.00%

5.00%

In service mortality IALM (2012-14)

are as follows:

Particulars Gratuity

For the Year Ended 
31st March, 2025

For the Year Ended 
31st March, 2024

Current Service Cost  77.95 

 1.44 

 -    -   

 79.39 

 42.38 

 (13.65)

recognized in OCI
 28.73 



146

BHARTIYA INTERNATIONAL LTD.

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

Rs. in Lakhs

iii) The amount included in the Balance Sheet arising from the entity’s obligation in respect of 

Particulars Gratuity

As at 
31st March, 2025

As at 
31st March, 2024

 647.63 

 (577.93)

Obligation
 69.70 

iv) 

Particulars Gratuity

For the Year Ended 
31st March, 2025

For the Year Ended 
31st March, 2024

 571.97 

Interest Cost  35.26 

Current Service Cost  77.95 

 -   

 (79.94)

 42.38 

 647.62 

v) Movements in the Fair Value of the Plan Assets are as follows:

 530.45 

Interest Income  33.82 

 -    -   

 13.65 

 577.92 

 * Fund Managed by the approved Insurance Company Kotak Life Insurance

Investment With Insurer 100.00%
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

Rs. in Lakhs
Sensitivity Analysis

Particulars Increase Effect Decrease Effect

Particulars Increase Effect Decrease Effect

43. EARNING PER SHARE

Particulars  Year Ended 
31st March, 2025

 Year Ended 
31st March, 2024

 2,115.23 

No. of share at the beginning of the year (A)  1,22,09,411 

 7,75,000 

Weighted average shares (B)  27,603 

 1,22,37,014 

Effect of diluted number of share 

 2,91,091  -   

share
 1,25,28,105 

Basic earning per share  17.29 

 16.88 

44. EXPORT PROMOTION CAPITAL GOODS (EPCG) 
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

Rs. in Lakhs
45. EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION PLAN

Grant Date April 5, 2018

Vesting tranche Vesting I Vesting II Vesting III Vesting IV

Vesting date

Grant Date February 03, 2018

Vesting tranche Vesting I Vesting II Vesting III Vesting IV

Vesting date

Grant Date December 31, 2015

Vesting tranche Vesting I Vesting II Vesting III

Vesting date

 

Grant Date September 16, 2015

Vesting tranche Vesting I Vesting II Vesting III

Vesting date

 

Grant Date January 28, 2014

Vesting tranche Vesting I Vesting II

Vesting date
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Rs. in Lakhs
 

Particulars Year Ended 
31st March, 2025

Year Ended 
31st March, 2024

NIL

 -    -   

 -   

 -   

 -   

implemented directly by the company
 -   

 -    -   

Nil

Nil

Date of Grant September 16, 2015 December 31, 2015 February 03, 2018 April 5, 2018

Weighted average share price

7 years 7 years

46. DETAILS OF CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) EXPENDITURE

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2025

As at 
31st March, 2024

 45.45 

 36.14 

 0.81 

 8.50  -   

 -    -   

 

Sanitation Sanitation 

 15.00 

(i) Where a provision is made with respect to a liability incurred by  N.A 
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47. SEGMENT REPORTING DISCLOSURE

48. 

49. PAYMENT TO AUDITOR ( INCLUDED IN LEGAL AND PROFESSIONAL CHARGES )

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2025

As at 
31st March, 2024

 25.00 

 7.50 

 1.39 

 5.00 

 0.75 

50. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT 

 The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

 
instruments by valuation techniques.
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars As at 31st March, 2025

Carrying 
Amount 

Level of input used in

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial Assets     

At Amortised Cost     

 13,837.49  -    -    13,837.49 

 225.21  -    -    225.21 

Other Bank Balance  6,475.20  -    -    6,475.20 

 652.06  -    -    652.06 

 3,840.63  -    -    3,840.63 

At FVTPL     

Investments  -    -    -    -   

Financial Liabilities     

At Amortised Cost     

Borrowings  45,844.05  -    -    45,844.05 

 296.05  296.05 

 18,499.93  -    -    18,499.93 

 1,229.43  -    -    1,229.43 

At FVTPL

 652.58  -    652.58  -   

Particulars As at 31st March, 2024

Carrying 
Amount 

Level of input used in

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial Assets     

At Amortised Cost     

 -    -   

 -    -   

Other Bank Balance  -    -   

 -    -   

 -    -   

At FVTPL     

Investments  -    -   

Financial Liabilities     

At Amortised Cost     

Borrowings  -    -   

 -    -   

 -    -   

At FVTPL

 -    -   
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

51. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

 

Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2025

As at 
31st March, 2024

 45,844.05 

 225.21 

Net Debt  45,618.84 

 1,298.44 

 38,295.51 

Total Capital  39,593.95 

Capital and Net Debt  85,212.79 

Gearing Ratio 53.54%

52. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 

 Credit Risk

Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2025

As at 
31st March, 2024

 8,461.62 

 4,334.35 

 1,177.20 
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Liquidity Risk

Particulars As at 31st March, 2025

0-1 year 1-5 year Beyond  
5 year

Total

borrowing)
 39,315.76 5,481.93 1,046.36  45,844.05 

 18,499.93  -    -    18,499.93 

 98.70 187.56 9.79  296.05 

 1,882.01  1,882.01 

Particulars As at 31st March, 2024

0-1 year 1-5 year Beyond  
5 year

Total

borrowing)
 -   

 -    -   

Market Risk

Interest Rate Risk

Exposure to Interest Rate Risk 

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2025

As at 
31st March, 2024

 45,844.05 

96.62%

Interest Rate Sensitivity

 442.94 

 442.94 
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Foreign Currency Risk Management

Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024

Foreign Currency 
Monetary Assets

Foreign Currency 
Monetary Liabilities

Foreign Currency 
Monetary Assets

 Foreign Currency 
Monetary Liabilities 

 107.57  500.83 

 9.38  25.04 

 34.98  0.99 

 0.15  0.20 

Foreign Currency Sensitivity

Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
5% Weakened 5% Strengthen 5% Weakened 5% Strengthen

 459.51  (459.51)
 43.26  (43.26)

 193.05  (193.05)
 0.08  (0.08)

 (2,139.30)  2,139.30 
 (115.47)  115.47 

 (5.46)  5.46 
 (0.11)  0.11 

reporting year
 (1,564.44)  1,564.44 

Disclosure Regarding Derivative Instruments.

Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
Currency Foreign 

Currency Lacs
Currency Foreign 

Currency Lacs
Forwards Contracts USD 144.80
 EURO 40.54
 GBP  -    -   
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

Rs. in Lakhs
53. RATIOS

Ratio Numerator Denominator 2024-25 2023-24 Variance Resaon

term borrowing

year

(e) Inventory turnover 
ratio, Sold increase in 

inventory 
turnover 

ratio is due 
to higher 
sales and 
improved 
inventory 

turnover ratio, 

turnover ratio, 

ratio, 
(Current assets-
current liabilities)

employed, 



156

BHARTIYA INTERNATIONAL LTD.
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54. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES AS PER IND AS 24   Rs. in Lakhs

a) Name of Related Parties & Nature of Relationship: Country  Ownership Interest 

i) Subsidiary Companies :

 India 

 India 

 India 

 India 

 India 

 Italy 

 China 

ii) Associate parties :

 India 

 India 

iii) Executive Directors:

iv) Non-Executive Directors

Vivek Kapur

v) 
by Executive Directors or their relatives :

vi) Trust
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Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars  2024-25  2023-24 

b) Transactions during the year with Related Parties :

1. Sales

 - 

1,270.60

 - 

 0.50 

2. Other Income

 80.42 

 0.13 

 13.00  - 

 13.00  - 

 1,982.95 

 13.65 

 0.04  - 

4. Commission Expenses

 742.24 

5. Salaries

 89.67 

 1.00 

 24.00 

7. Lease Rent Received

 187.48 

 18.00 
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Particulars  2024-25  2023-24 

8. Service Charges Paid

 54.33 

 - 

9. Other Expenses

 - 

10. Legal and Professional Fees

 0.60 

 105.84 

 9.00 

 240.00 

11. Sitting Fee

 2.61 

 2.61 

 1.39 

Vivek Kapur  2.61 

12. CSR Expenses

Chaman Bhartiya Foundation  15.00  - 

 c) Balances Outstanding at the year end: 

1. Advance Paid

 - 

2. Advance with suppliers

 438.12 

 119.48 

3. Trade Receivable

 1,664.02 

 352.75 

 - 

 - 

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

Rs. in Lakhs
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Particulars  2024-25  2023-24 

4. Security Deposit (Paid)

 5.00 

5. Trade Payables

 329.43 

 1.00 

 13.42  - 

 1,136.29 

 9.87  - 

 0.68 

7. Security Deposit (Received)

 159.79 

 1.50 

8. Standby Letter of Credit (SBLC) Issued by Company Bankers

 6,285.37 

9. Corporate Guarantee given by Company

 138.38 

For SUSHIL PODDAR & CO. For and on behalf of the Board

Ambrish Rastogi Yogesh Kumar Gautam Raj Kumar Chawla Manoj Khattar Vivek Kapur

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

Rs. in Lakhs
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